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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

8:15 a.m.: 

EXAMINER CATANACH: We'll reconvene the hearing 

a t t h i s time i n Case 11,080 and 11,809, and I b e l i e v e 

yesterday we were concluded w i t h B u r l i n g t o n , but you've 

informed me t h a t you do have another witness a t t h i s time, 

Mr. K e l l a h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I've asked the 

p r o f e s s i o n a l land survey who i s knowledgeable about the 

surface use l i m i t a t i o n s i n Section 8, as w e l l as being the 

surveyor who staked the Marcotte w e l l , t o come down t h i s 

morning, and he's en route from Farmington. I expect him 

t o be here by ten o'clock t h i s morning. 

I f y o u ' l l grant me permission t o conclude my 

pr e s e n t a t i o n a t t h i s time w i t h the o p p o r t u n i t y t o present 

the surveyor plus present t o you the documents t h a t I have 

compiled l a s t n i g h t t h a t address the issue of the 

unorthodox nature of the Marcotte w e l l , i n c l u d i n g 

compliance w i t h the o f f s e t n o t i c e requirements. 

With t h a t understanding, then, we're prepared t o 

r e s t our case. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. Mr. Gallegos? 

MR. GALLEGOS: Well, we — B u r l i n g t o n ' s case i s 

completed, we have c e r t a i n motions. 

But I ' d l i k e t o p o i n t out t h a t the prehearing 
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statement f i l e d by B u r l i n g t o n s t a t e d t h a t t h e r e would be a 

g e o l o g i s t a v a i l a b l e t o t e s t i f y , and i f I remember 

c o r r e c t l y , p a r t of the r a t i o n a l e f o r the o p p o s i t i o n t o our 

subpoena t o the geophysicist, Mr. Schoderbeck, was because 

i t would be unnecessary, because the g e o l o g i s t would be 

here t o present s i m i l a r evidence. Now t h a t ' s not going t o 

be presented. 

The matter of the surveyor, of course, i s a 

s u r p r i s e . We've had no advance warning of t h a t . I t seems 

l i k e we're s o r t of switching t h e o r i e s i n midstream here. 

Can we know some f u r t h e r reason f o r what t h i s 

keeping the case open i s about? I thought we heard 

yesterday t h a t the l o c a t i o n was a matter of convenience, 

and I t h i n k we've already heard unequivocal testimony t h a t 

the l o c a t i o n of the Marcotte w e l l was d i c t a t e d by the 

g e o l o g i s t , but we're not going t o have the g e o l o g i s t . 

So what i s the purpose of t h i s delay and f u r t h e r 

witness? E i t h e r the case i s closed, i t seems t o me, or — 

and we need t o see whether they've met the s t a t u t o r y 

standard of proof, or we're not, or we're going t o have 

g e o l o g i c a l testimony. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Well, I had some questions 

w i t h regards t o the l o c a t i o n , and I t h i n k t h a t we s t i l l 

need t o get t h i s witness probably on t o answer my questions 

about the necessity of the unorthodox l o c a t i o n . 
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And i f the l o c a t i o n i s based on topography and 

archaeology, as has been t e s t i f i e d — I'm s t i l l not sure of 

the answer t o t h a t question. I f i t ' s j u s t based on t h a t , 

we can — I'm not sure t h a t a g e o l o g i s t i s going t o be 

necessary t o address the unorthodox l o c a t i o n . 

MR. GALLEGOS: There's some p r e t t y c l e a r 

e v i d e n t i a r y r u l e s . You can't c o n t r a d i c t your own witness. 

Are you c a l l i n g a witness t o rebut the testimony of Mr. 

Shipley, who says the l o c a t i o n was d i c t a t e d by the 

ge o l o g i s t ? Whether — They're c a l l i n g a witness now t o 

rebut t h e i r own testimony and c o n t r a d i c t i t ? I s t h a t what 

we're doing? 

MR. KELLAHIN: That was not Mr. Shipley's 

testimony, Mr. Catanach. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Yes, i t was. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I've represented t o you the 

unorthodox l o c a t i o n i s based upon topographic reasons. 

You've asked t o have i n f o r m a t i o n on t h a t item, I've 

responded t o your request, we're b r i n g i n g the surveyor 

down, and you can examine him, and he w i l l t e l l you t h a t 

the l o c a t i o n was based upon topographies. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Mr. K e l l a h i n i s not under oath, 

and Mr. Shipley was, and he t e s t i f i e d u n e quivocally i n 

addressing the AFE t h a t t h a t ' s where he got the l o c a t i o n , 

t h a t ' s what d i c t a t e d the g e o l o g i s t . And I t h i n k i t was 
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c l e a r , even i n Mr. S t r i c k l e r ' s testimony. 

So I o b j e c t t o them — t o t h i s t a c t i c of not 

having a g e o l o g i s t opposing our subpoena of the 

geo p h y s i c i s t on the basis they would have the g e o l o g i s t , 

t h e i r own testimony e s t a b l i s h i n g how the Marcotte was 

loc a t e d , and then we're going t o have a witness t o come i n 

and show something t o the contrary. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Gallegos continues t o want t o 

explore the geologic background on t h i s case. I've advised 

you yesterday repeatedly t h a t we're seeking the maximum 

r i s k f a c t o r penalty based upon the absence of proven 

p r o d u c t i o n i n the San Juan Basin and the deep gas. I t ' s 

not necessary t o put a g e o l o g i s t on t o prove t h a t p o i n t . 

The prehearing statement was f i l e d l a s t week 

before you r u l e d on the motions. Once you quashed the 

motions and denied the subpoenas and quashed the motions, 

i t was not necessary f o r me t o b r i n g a g e o l o g i s t , because 

geology was no longer a t o p i c . 

MR. CARROLL: Well, I t h i n k you read a l i t t l e too 

much i n t o our r u l i n g t o quash the subpoena. You d i d l i s t a 

g e o l o g i s t , a Mr. Mike Dawson, who wasn't Mr. Schoderbeck. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That's r i g h t . 

MR. CARROLL: And we thought another g e o l o g i s t , 

p a r t i c u l a r l y a geophysicist, was unnecessary, since you 

already had a g e o l o g i s t , and then you show up w i t h o u t a 
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g e o l o g i s t . I ' d l i k e t o hear your exp l a n a t i o n as t o why Mr. 

Dawson was dropped from your l i s t of witnesses. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I f e l t i t unnecessary t o prove the 

2 00-percent r i s k f a c t o r penalty, i n f a c t — 

MR. CARROLL: That was the sole purpose f o r Mr. 

Dawson's testimony? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . Mr. Dawson has access 

t o the seismic i n f o r m a t i o n . His conclusions w i t h regards 

t o geology are inf l u e n c e d by t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n , and I don't 

want t o provide a witness f o r Mr. Gallegos t o get 

i n d i r e c t l y what you have not allowed him t o have d i r e c t l y . 

MR. CARROLL: And w e ' l l look a t the t r a n s c r i p t , 

but i t ' s my understanding t h a t the g e o l o g i s t picked the two 

sections they were going t o d r i l l w e l l s i n , and then i t was 

up t o the p e r m i t t i n g s p e c i a l i s t t o get i t i n the unorthodox 

window or i n a s u i t a b l e l o c a t i o n w i t h i n t h a t section? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s my r e c o l l e c t i o n . 

MR. CARROLL: But w e ' l l review the t r a n s c r i p t t o 

see i f t h a t ' s what Mr. S t r i c k l e r t e s t i f i e d t o . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Shipley t e s t i f i e d t h a t t he 

i n f o r m a t i o n on the l o c a t i o n was given t o him by the 

g e o l o g i s t . That does not conclude t h a t i t ' s a geologic 

l o c a t i o n as t o t h a t p i c k . 

MR. CARROLL: Yeah, the exact l o c a t i o n w i t h i n a 

s e c t i o n . 
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MR. KELLAHIN: That's r i g h t . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I f we're going t o put the 

surveyor, whoever was responsible f o r p i c k i n g the l o c a t i o n , 

I t h i n k we can get some c l e a r and d e f i n i t i v e answers on 

how, e x a c t l y , the l o c a t i o n was picked. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I f we determine a t t h a t time 

t h a t t h e r e was any geologic i n f l u e n c e , we can continue the 

case and make him b r i n g a g e o l o g i s t down. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Well, on the r e p r e s e n t a t i o n t h a t 

the only f u r t h e r testimony w i l l be from the surveyor, we 

move t o dismiss the A p p l i c a t i o n , both A p p l i c a t i o n s . 

The s t a t u t o r y standard, i n s p i t e of Mr. 

K e l l a h i n ' s view t h a t a l l you have t o do i s t a l k about r i s k 

f a c t o r — the s t a t u t o r y standard t h a t allows the D i v i s i o n 

t o enter a f o r c e - p o o l i n g order i s t h a t i t has been shown 

t h a t by fo r c e p o o l i n g there w i l l be the avoidance of 

d r i l l i n g of unnecessary w e l l s , the pre v e n t i o n of waste and 

the p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s . 

And w i t h o u t the g e o l o g i c a l testimony, t h e r e i s 

not anything i n t h i s record on the App l i c a n t ' s case t h a t 

goes t o those standards whatsoever. A l l we've heard about 

i s land, t r y t o get agreement, r i s k f a c t o r . Completely 

ignored the standard t h a t must be met i n order t o have a 

fo r c e p o o l i n g . 
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And I t h i n k both — I understand t h a t a l l t h a t ' s 

l e f t i s the surveyor, t h a t the A p p l i c a t i o n s are done, 

should be dismissed. 

MR. CARROLL: Well, my understanding of your 

argument, Mr. Gallegos, we'd never have a w i l d c a t w e l l 

d r i l l e d , because you couldn't j u s t i f y a w e l l because the 

odds of i t h i t t i n g any o i l and gas were so s l i g h t . 

MR. GALLEGOS: Not a t a l l , no, you could come i n 

and show, here's what we've done, here i s our study, we've 

got good science t h a t says we have a prospect, and we 

should d r i l l t h i s , i t ' s going t o p r o t e c t c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s 

and — yeah. No, you can show t h a t , you can make a showing 

anytime. 

Otherwise a l l you're doing i s coming i n and 

saying, I want t o d r i l l the w e l l , I'm the operator, t h a t ' s 

i t . That's not what the s t a t u t e ' s t a l k i n g about. 

MR. CARROLL: Under the s t a t u t e , i f you have the 

r i g h t t o d r i l l a w e l l , you have the r i g h t t o d r i l l a w e l l . 

And nonconsenting owners can't hold up the d r i l l i n g of a 

w e l l by saying, We obje c t t o i t . You have the r i g h t e i t h e r 

t o pay your costs up f r o n t or p a r t i c i p a t e . So you don't 

have t o pay your money up f r o n t . You're s u b j e c t t o a 200-

percent — up t o a 2 00-percent penalty — i f you don't 

consent. 

MR. GALLEGOS: The f i r s t paragraph of — I beg t o 
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d i f f e r , Mr. C a r r o l l . The f i r s t paragraph of 70-2-17C, the 

l a s t sentence, provides a standard t h a t has t o be met. 

Just because you have the r i g h t t o d r i l l -- An operator may 

have the r i g h t t o d r i l l a w e l l , but they d r i l l i t a t t h e i r 

own r i s k under the r u l e s of tenancy i n common. 

We're t a l k i n g about f o r c e p o o l i n g , we're t a l k i n g 

about f o r c i n g somebody i n t o the u n i t . 

MR. CARROLL: Well, I beg t o d i f f e r w i t h your 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . To avoid the d r i l l i n g of unnecessary w e l l s 

i s t o avoid f o u r w e l l s on t h i s 64 0-acre u n i t . To avoid 

t h a t — or — 

MR. GALLEGOS: How do you — 

MR. CARROLL: — i t could be 2 0 w e l l s i f there's 

i f t here's 20 d i f f e r e n t — 

MR. GALLEGOS: How do you — 

MR. CARROLL: — acreage — 

MR. GALLEGOS: — show they're necessary i f you 

don't have any geology? 

MR. CARROLL: I f the spacing i s 64 0 acres, 

there's one w e l l . And i f you pool i t you only have t o 

d r i l l one w e l l , r a t h e r than more than more than one w e l l . 

MR. GALLEGOS: Maybe one w e l l i s unnecessary. We 

don't know t h a t i t ' s necessary y e t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Gallegos i s c o l l a t e r a l l y 

a t t a c k i n g the spacing order, Mr. Examiner. 
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EXAMINER CATANACH: We're going t o deny the 

motions t o dismiss again a t t h i s time, and proceed w i t h the 

case, Mr. Gallegos. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Okay, we c a l l G a i l Cotton. 

Mr. Catanach and C a r r o l l , do you have our 

e x h i b i t s ? They were — 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Yes. 

MR. GALLEGOS: — e x h i b i t s t h a t we provided? 

GAIL COTTON, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

her oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. GALLEGOS: 

Q. State your name, please. 

A. G a i l Cotton. 

Q. Where do you l i v e , Ms. Cotton? 

A. I n Dallas. 

Q. What i s your employment? 

A. I am a v i c e president a t the F i r s t N a t i o n a l Bank 

of Chicago, and I manage t h e i r mineral management u n i t i n 

Dall a s . 

Q. What i s your education a f t e r high school? 

A. I got a BA from National Louis U n i v e r s i t y , and I 

have my MBA a t SMU. 

Q. Just g e n e r a l l y — We'll go i n t o more d e t a i l a 
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l i t t l e b i t l a t e r , but j u s t g e n e r a l l y , what are your d u t i e s 

as v i c e p r e s i d e n t , management of mineral p r o p e r t i e s ? 

A. We — Most of our c l i e n t s are t r u s t c l i e n t s , and 

we review a l l the account when they come i n , procure t i t l e 

when necessary, negotiate leases, determine p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

i n AFEs, a l l t a x and accounting r e p o r t s , c o l l e c t income, 

pay expenses. 

Q. Would you review f o r the Examiner your work 

experience i n the o i l and gas industry? 

A. Yes, I s t a r t e d i n 1981 as a f i e l d landman, and 

a f t e r t h a t time I worked at various companies as D i v i s i o n 

order a n a l y s t , lease analyst, landman. 

I n 1989 I s t a r t e d working a t the Northern T r u s t 

Company, managing t h e i r mineral department. I was t h e r e 

about f o u r and a h a l f years. And since t h a t time I've been 

a t F i r s t Chicago. 

Q. What were some of the businesses you worked f o r 

before you went t o work f o r Northern Trust? 

A. General American O i l Company, NRM Petroleum, 

Thompson Monteith, Mobil o i l . 

Q. Were your d u t i e s and r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s a t Northern 

Trust much the same as the are at F i r s t Chicago? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And how long have you been Vice President 

of M i n e r a l Management at F i r s t Chicago? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Four and a h a l f years. 

Q. Now, does F i r s t — F i r s t Chicago, but i n D a l l a s , 

i n a Dallas f a c i l i t y ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Would you e x p l a i n t h a t r e l a t i o n s h i p and how the 

mineral management f o r t h a t bank comes t o be there? 

A. We're headquartered i n Chicago, but they have an 

o i l and gas o f f i c e i n Dallas. And we handle a l l the 

minerals f o r the c o r p o r a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. What are the types of o i l and gas 

ownership t h a t you're responsible f o r ? 

A. Working i n t e r e s t , o v e r r i d e s , minerals, r o y a l t i e s , 

a l l over the United States and i n Canada. 

Q. Okay. Approximately what are the annual revenues 

from these p r o p e r t i e s t h a t you're responsible — 

A. About $8 m i l l i o n — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — a year. 

Q. And i n your capacity p e r s o n a l l y and i n your 

department, are you a f i d u c i a r y ? F i d u c i a r y 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s ? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Are some of the p r o p e r t i e s held i n t r u s t ? 

A. Yes, most of them are held i n t r u s t , but we do 

have i n d i v i d u a l c l i e n t s we manage f o r as agent or 
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custodian. 

Q. Okay. And how do you go about making decisions? 

What do you understand are the l e g a l o b l i g a t i o n s on your 

p a r t i n terms of making decisions concerning these 

p r o p e r t i e s ? 

A. I t depends on the type of i n t e r e s t . For 

instance, w i t h a r o y a l t y or a mineral we n e g o t i a t e o i l and 

gas leases and f i n d out what's going on i n the area, what 

the plans are, what the going r a t e of the bonus and delay 

r e n t a l s , whatever t h a t i s . 

And then on working i n t e r e s t , we t a l k t o the 

operator, the g e o l o g i s t , engineer, gather i n f o r m a t i o n and 

make a recommendation t o the a d m i n i s t r a t o r as t o whether t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e or not. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h what i s c a l l e d i n law the 

prudent man rul e ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what i s tha t ? What do you understand t h a t t o 

be? 

A. Do a l l the due d i l i g e n c e , gather i n f o r m a t i o n t o 

the best of your knowledge, t o make a d e c i s i o n . 

Q. Okay. And i f you f a i l t o f o l l o w t h a t r u l e , what 

i s your understanding of the p o t e n t i a l l i a b i l i t y f o r you 

and your bank? 

A. The bank could be sued. 
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Q. What procedures do you u s u a l l y f o l l o w ? Let's 

concentrate on a proposal t h a t would i n v o l v e commitment of 

a working i n t e r e s t under your charge t o p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n 

d r i l l i n g , rework or some proposal of t h a t nature. What 

steps do you t y p i c a l l y f o l l o w ? 

A. When the AFE comes i n we make sure we have 

ap p r o p r i a t e t i t l e , look a t the amount of money i n v o l v e d . 

I f i t ' s very small, l i k e many of ours are, then sometimes 

i t only costs the t r u s t about $500 t o p a r t i c i p a t e , so we 

don't do as much work i n t h a t event. 

But i f i t ' s anything over $1000 or $2 000 t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e , I always c a l l the operator, regardless of the 

s i t e , and f i n d out what h i s plans are, f i n d out a l l about 

the i n f o r m a t i o n on the surrounding p r o d u c t i o n . And i f i t ' s 

of any si z e we h i r e an engineer t o look a t a l l the data. 

Q. Do you request t h i n g s such as logs, seismic 

data — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — t h a t type of thing? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. And what has been your experience as t o the 

response t h a t you t y p i c a l l y received t o those requests? 

A. They're u s u a l l y cooperative w i t h supplying 

i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. I f the matter does i n v o l v e s i z e a b l e expenditures 
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and i t complicated, then you say you b r i n g i n — 

A. An outside — 

Q. e v a l u a t i o n — 

A. An engineer. 

Q. Then a t what l e v e l can you make a d e c i s i o n , you 

p e r s o n a l l y , whether t o commit p r o p e r t i e s under your charge 

t o a d r i l l i n g proposal? 

A. We review a l l the i n f o r m a t i o n and get a r e p o r t 

from the engineer and make a recommendation t o the 

a d m i n i s t r a t o r , and then we have t o take i t t o the t r u s t 

r e a l e s t a t e subcommittee f o r approval. 

Q. Okay. Have you had some recent experiences i n 

New Mexico where w e l l s have been d r i l l e d t h a t you — 

p r o p e r t i e s t h a t you're i n charge of? 

A. Yes. I n f a c t , i n the past year we've had a t r u s t 

or an account t h a t had two w e l l s d r i l l e d by Enron. They 

had a small working i n t e r e s t ownership. 

Q. Okay. Did you agree t o p a r t i c i p a t e on a 

v o l u n t a r y basis? 

A. Yes, we d i d . 

Q. And do you f r e q u e n t l y do t h a t w i t h working 

i n t e r e s t s under your charge? 

A. Yes. 

Q. We've heard mention p r e v i o u s l y , Ms. Cotton, of 

GLA-66. Do you know what t h a t is? 
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A. Yes, I do. 

Q. And what i s i t , generally? 

A. Gas lease agreement, and the Lucerne i n t e r e s t 

owners are under t h a t agreement. 

Q. Does t h a t agreement cover Federal Lease SF-078-

— l e t ' s see, -78,389? 

A. Yes. 

Q. 2480 acres i n Township 31 North, Range 10 West? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. I s the coverage of t h a t gas lease sale 

agreement from the surface t o the base of the Mesaverde 

formation? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Okay, and i s the E x h i b i t A a copy of t h a t 

agreement? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Okay. Are there t r u s t s t h a t you administer which 

are i n t e r e s t holders i n GLA-66 and also i n the u n d e r l y i n g 

lease, which would be i n c l u s i v e of unleased depths below 

the Mesaverde? 

A. Yes, I have fo u r t r u s t s . 

Q. Okay. I s E x h i b i t B a copy of the f e d e r a l lease 

i t s e l f ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Turn t o E x h i b i t C, then, and i f you would e x p l a i n 
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t o the Examiner and the counsel what t h i s shows. 

A. The area i n red, i t says "Lucerne Corp", and 

t h a t ' s the Lucerne Corp. owner i n t e r e s t under t h a t lease, 

SF-78,389. 

Q. Okay. Lucerne was a predecessor i n i n t e r e s t t o 

the 7 61 present owners of t h a t lease? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And even though i t says "miscellaneous 

owners" over i n the l e f t - h a n d side t h e r e , i s , i n f a c t , a l l 

of the area shown i n red the lease i n which your t r u s t s 

have an i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And i f y o u ' l l give your a t t e n t i o n over t o Section 

9, where the Scott 24 w e l l i s proposed, does t h i s r e f l e c t 

t h a t t he east h a l f and the southwest q u a r t e r of t h a t 

s e c t i o n are owned t o the extent of the GLA-66 owners' — 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. — lease? A l l r i g h t . 

Do you know the source of t h i s map? 

A. I s t h i s the one, the Arch Rock prospect? 

Q. Arch prospect? I n any event, a l l I want i s , as 

f a r as the ownership shown, other than the GLA-66 lease, 

t h a t ' s not your work, i s i t ? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. Has there been l i t i g a t i o n between El Paso 
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and i t s successor, Meridian, now B u r l i n g t o n , concerning 

GLA-66 over the years? 

A. Yes, f o r many years, probably 13 or 14 years. 

Q. And p r e s e n t l y i s there a l a w s u i t ongoing i n San 

Juan County, New Mexico between — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — you and the other GLA-66 owners and — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — Burlington? Okay. 

I s E x h i b i t D a copy of a settlement agreement 

t h a t was entered i n t o during the course of some of the 

p r i o r l i t i g a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And i s E x h i b i t E a copy of the amended complaint 

t h a t ' s on f i l e i n the pending case i n San Juan County? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And E x h i b i t F, the Answer of El Paso and 

Meridian, Meridian now known as B u r l i n g t o n Resources? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. What i s E x h i b i t G? 

A. I t ' s the working i n t e r e s t ownership i n Section 9, 

showing our ownership and then i n the upper q u a r t e r where 

we don't own i t , and t h a t ' s the proposed Scott 24 w e l l . 

Q. Okay. Now, B u r l i n g t o n i t s e l f does have a small 

i n t e r e s t i n the east h a l f and the southwest q u a r t e r . Are 
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you aware of tha t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And are you aware of how B u r l i n g t o n came t o 

o b t a i n t h a t ownership? 

A. Do you mean from El Paso, previ o u s l y ? 

Q. No, I meant from the northern t r u s t . Was 

th e r e — 

A. Oh, yes. Yes, when I was a t Northern Trust we 

s o l d the i n t e r e s t t o B u r l i n g t o n . 

Q. Okay. 

A. A c t u a l l y El Paso. 

Q. Which was a carve-out of some of the i n t e r e s t 

t h a t had been p a r t of the GLA-66 — 

A. Right. 

Q. — property? Okay. 

And then does the E x h i b i t G serve t o show t h a t 

the — i n the one — i n the northwest q u a r t e r where the 

Scott 24 w e l l i s t o be d r i l l e d , the r e l a t i v e ownership 

i n t e r e s t of the p a r t i e s there? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What does E x h i b i t H t e l l us? 

A. I t r e f l e c t s our t r u s t ownership where we're the 

t r u s t e e , and also i t shows the costs, completion costs and 

dryhole costs of the w e l l . 

Q. Okay. Does E x h i b i t H a t the top show the f o u r 
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t r u s t s t h a t F i r s t Chicago administers t h a t are i n t e r e s t 

owners i n t h i s proceeding? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Okay, t h e i r r e l a t i v e i n t e r e s t s — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — shown over at the r i g h t hand — 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. — t o t a l ? Okay. 

And then does i t then i l l u s t r a t e the amount of 

money t h a t would be involved i f you were t o agree t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e v o l u n t a r i l y the w e l l , as proposed under the AFE 

of Burlington? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Okay. You would be committing, then, t o a 

completion cost of approximately $69,000? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And i f you go nonconsent, i s t h i s nonconsent 

i l l u s t r a t i o n based on the penalty being a p p l i e d only t o the 

d r i l l i n g cost? 

A. Yes, the dryhole cost. 

Q. Okay. Then on top of t h a t t h e r e would be a 

sharing — do you understand there would be a sharing i n 

the completion cost, surface f a c i l i t i e s and t h a t type of 

t h i n g ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. Okay. And then a t the bottom does E x h i b i t H show 

the r e l a t i v e expense commitment t o the w e l l of B u r l i n g t o n , 

as compared t o these f o u r t r u s t s t h a t you administer? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. I s there a group or a committee t h a t advises 

and — i n a way represents the some 61 GLA-66 owners? 

A. Yes, there's a committee of e i g h t people, and 

they represent various t r u s t s and i n t e r e s t s . 

Q. And i n what regard do they provide t h a t 

r epresentation? I mean, what c a l l s on the committee t o 

fu n c t i o n ? 

A. We have — anything — something l i k e t h i s comes 

up, and AFE or a l a w s u i t , we have r e g u l a r conference c a l l s 

and i n v e s t i g a t e everything. 

Q. Are you a member of t h a t committee? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Okay. So — And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h a l l of the 

other i n t e r e s t owners and have i n f o r m a t i o n g e n e r a l l y on 

what t h e i r i n t e r e s t s are? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I n the booklet t h a t was provided — and I don't 

know t h a t you've seen i t , but you've been provided w i t h 

v a r i o u s m a i l i n g s f o r B u r l i n g t o n on the proposed Scott 

w e l l — 

A. Yes. 
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Q. — t h a t l i s t those ownerships and the i n t e r e s t s , 

and does t h a t appear t o be a complete l i s t i n g ? 

A- I t looks l i k e i t i s . 

Q. Okay. Now, what does E x h i b i t I serve t o show? 

A. This r e f l e c t s the whole group ownership, where we 

own almost 64 percent. I t ' s s i m i l a r t o the one p r i o r t o 

t h i s where i t r e f l e c t s the dryhole cost, completion c o s t , 

and then i t r e f l e c t s B u r l i n g t o n ' s ownership and cost again. 

Q. So does t h i s show t h a t on a v o l u n t a r y 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n basis, the GLA-66 group would be committing 

t o roughly a m i l l i o n and a h a l f d o l l a r s f o r the d r i l l i n g of 

the Scott 24 w e l l , compared t o $238,000 f o r B u r l i n g t o n ? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Now, have there been any communications from 

B u r l i n g t o n about deep Penn t e s t t h a t has sought purchase of 

the i n t e r e s t s t h a t you administer or agreement of those 

i n t e r e s t s i n the d r i l l i n g of t h i s well? 

A. Yes, we got a l e t t e r from them on June 18th, also 

on September 10th, 1996. 

Q. Okay, l e t ' s take those one a t a time, q u i c k l y , 

and j u s t go through. 

Let me ask you f i r s t , have you received anything 

from B u r l i n g t o n i n the nature of communication, other than 

j u s t something coming t o you i n the mail? 

A. No. 
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Q. Has Mr. S t r i c k l e r ever phoned you, v i s i t e d you or 

contacted you i n any way other than j u s t sending something 

i n the mail? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Has anybody else from B u r l i n g t o n ever made any 

attempt t o t a l k t o you about t h i s matter? 

A. No. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So the f i r s t t h i n g you received was 

t h i s l e t t e r of June 18, 1996? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Now, j u s t by way of exp l a n a t i o n here, the 

ma i l i n g s you received would have been one f o r each of the 

fo u r t r u s t s ? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. But the e x h i b i t s t h a t we're p r e s e n t i n g here w i l l 

j u s t be one as a sample? 

A. Right. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So the f i r s t t h i n g you received 

o f f e r e d what? 

A. They o f f e r e d t o buy our non-producing i n t e r e s t 

f o r a hundred d o l l a r s . 

Q. What d i d you do i n regard t o con s i d e r i n g t h a t 

o f f e r ? 

A. I j u s t threw i t t o the side. 

Q. Why? 
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A. I t was very low, and I wasn't i n t e r e s t e d i n 

s e l l i n g . 

Q. Okay. That was E x h i b i t J? 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. Okay, what i s E x h i b i t K? 

A. Another o f f e r t o purchase. I n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

instance we had almost 20 net acres, and they wanted t o buy 

our nonproducing i n t e r e s t f o r twenty d o l l a r s a net acre. 

Q. Okay, and what d i d you t h i n k of t h a t o f f e r ? 

A. I put i t t o the side also. 

Q. Okay. Considered i t worth not any f u r t h e r 

d e l i b e r a t i o n ? 

A. Right. 

Q. And what's E x h i b i t L? 

A. This i s another o f f e r where they've o f f e r e d t o 

purchase our i n t e r e s t s below the Mesaverde f o r $50 a net 

acre, where we would r e t a i n the two-percent o v e r r i d e . 

Q. Okay. Let me c a l l your a t t e n t i o n t o — This 

l e t t e r i s from a Walter Parks? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Okay. Let me c a l l your a t t e n t i o n t o the l a s t 

sentence of the f i r s t paragraph, which reads, "This w e l l i s 

very high r i s k (10% success p r o b a b i l i t y ) and very expensive 

(Estimated 1.2 M i l l i o n dry hole cost; $1.7 M i l l i o n through 

completion)." 
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What did that language convey to you? 

A. I t looked t o me l i k e they were t r y i n g t o 

discourage us from e n t e r i n g i n t o t h i s . 

Q. Does the l e t t e r also say i n the second paragraph 

t h a t t h e r e w i l l be an "...Operating Agreement p r o v i d i n g f o r 

a 4 00% non-consent p e n a l t y . . . w i t h the p r e f e r e n t i a l r i g h t t o 

purchase p r o v i s i o n deleted"? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. What d i d you t h i n k of t h a t ? 

A. I thought t h a t was p r e t t y outrageous, f o r 400-

percent nonconsent. 

Q. Okay. And then as an a l t e r n a t i v e i s t h e r e 

another o f f e r t h a t i f you don't accept t h a t proposal, 

there's an a l t e r n a t i v e ? 

A. Well, they sent the l e t t e r on A p r i l 29th. You 

know, they gave us some options t o p a r t i c i p a t e . 

Q. But on t h i s one — 

A. Oh, you could e i t h e r s e l l or j o i n them. 

Q. Okay. And now the amount per acre on a sale 

basis has been increased? 

A. Yes, $50 a net acre, and r e t a i n a two-percent 

o v e r r i d e . 

Q. Okay. Did you consider t h i s proposal one t h a t 

deserved any k i n d of serious consideration? 

A. No. 
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Q. Ms. Cotton, i s i t unusual f o r you i n your 

c a p a c i t y t o get o f f e r s s o r t of out of the blue t h a t j u s t 

say, you know, We'll buy the i n t e r e s t , here's — 

A. Yes, we — 

Q. — a few d o l l a r s f o r i t ? 

A. — we receive them o f t e n . Sometimes they're very 

low, and sometimes they're a decent o f f e r . And when i t i s 

decent, w e ' l l look i n t o i t . When i t ' s not, we u s u a l l y j u s t 

put i t t o the side. 

Q. Okay. Then from November, 199 6, was th e r e 

n o t h i n g more t h a t came t o you u n t i l l a t e A p r i l of 1997? 

A. Right. 

Q. Okay. And i s t h a t demonstrated by E x h i b i t M? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Okay. And what does E x h i b i t M c o n s i s t of? 

A. They're t e l l i n g us t h a t they're proposing t he 

w e l l i n Section 9, and they're asking us i f we want t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e . They enclosed a copy of the AFE and the 

ope r a t i n g agreement. 

Q. Have you since learned t h a t i n March t h e r e was a 

hearing before the O i l Conservation Commission of New 

Mexico i n which B u r l i n g t o n sought a change i n the spacing 

r u l e t h a t would apply t o t h i s well? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So what d i d you do when you received E x h i b i t M, 
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the A p r i l 29, 1997, l e t t e r ? 

A. Well, I discussed i t w i t h a few other people, and 

we wanted t e c h n i c a l i n f o r m a t i o n t o decide whether or not we 

should p a r t i c i p a t e . 

Q. Okay. And what steps d i d you take t o t r y and 

o b t a i n the t e c h n i c a l information? 

A. I t a l k e d t o Watson LaForce and B i l l Shaw, and 

then we had a conference c a l l t o discuss i t . 

Q. I s Mr. LaForce a member of t h a t eight-person 

committee? 

A. Yes, he i s . 

Q. And Mr. Shaw? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And then were some steps taken — Are you 

aware of steps taken t o communicate t o B u r l i n g t o n t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n would be needed i n order t o make a d e c i s i o n on 

t h i s proposal? 

A. Yes, I knew they were t r y i n g t o gather 

i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. Were you also aware and represented by 

E x h i b i t N t h a t i n May, as your a t t o r n e y , I wrote t o Mr. 

S t r i c k l e r and requested t h a t information? 

A. Yes, you d i d . 

Q. And d i d we advise whenever the i n f o r m a t i o n was 

sought from B u r l i n g t o n t h a t we were w i l l i n g t o keep i t 
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confidential and use i t only for the purposes of 

c o n s i d e r i n g t h e i r o f f e r ? 

A. Yes, which I thought was a normal procedure. 

Q. Was the proposal of A p r i l 29, 1997, acceptable as 

i s , w i t h o u t any f u r t h e r information? 

A. D e f i n i t e l y not. I have a f i d u c i a r y 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , and t h e r e would be no way I could make a 

d e c i s i o n w i t h o u t any i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. Have you — Did you go over the o p e r a t i n g 

agreement t h a t was proposed? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. Okay. I don't want t o go i n t o d e t a i l , take the 

time, but i n your experience, you're f a m i l i a r w i t h j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement forms, are you not? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And there are various standard p r o v i s i o n s i n 

those agreements and p r o v i s i o n s t h a t are o f t e n added a t the 

end of the p r i n t e d form t o add other terms and c o n d i t i o n s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And were th e r e a number of s t r i c k e n 

standard p r o v i s i o n s and added terms and c o n d i t i o n s — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — t h a t you consider t o be e x t r a o r d i n a r y , not 

customary i n the i n d u s t r y p r a c t i c e ? 

A. Correct. 
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Q. Let me ask i f you were able t o o b t a i n the 

i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t ' s necessary t o make the d e c i s i o n on behalf 

of your t r u s t , or are you and i s F i r s t Chicago open t o 

attemp t i n g t o negotiate a s a t i s f a c t o r y agreement f o r 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the w e l l , or f o r farmout or — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — other arrangement? 

A. Yes, we would be. 

Q. And then there's one more e x h i b i t , E x h i b i t O, and 

what i s t h a t ? 

A. This i s from B u r l i n g t o n where they're a d v i s i n g us 

t h a t they haven't heard from us and t h a t we need t o e i t h e r 

p a r t i c i p a t e , e l e c t t o go nonconsent, farm out, or they're 

going t o pool us. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, even though the proposed w e l l i s 

on — i n Section 9, which involves 480 acres of the GLA-66 

p r o p e r t i e s , was the farmout proposal confined t o the 

Section 9 pr o p e r t i e s ? 

A. No, i t included a l l of our acreage. 

Q. Okay. And what was your r e a c t i o n t o t h a t ? 

A. I a c t u a l l y thought t h a t was k i n d of sneaky, 

because we kept t a l k i n g about j u s t Section 9, and then when 

I r e a l i z e d , a f t e r I read the farmout agreement the f i r s t 

time I d i d n ' t n o t i c e , and then the second time I n o t i c e d i t 

had a l l of our acreage. 
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Q. Okay. Do you consider t h a t t o be a reasonable 

o f f e r t o o b t a i n your p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the Scott 24 w e l l ? 

A. No. 

Q. I n your experience, f o r an operator t o make a 

reasonable e f f o r t t o o b t a i n v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n of one 

of the i n t e r e s t s t h a t you manage, do you b e l i e v e t h a t the 

terms and c o n d i t i o n s should be such t h a t t hey're m u t u a l l y 

acceptable? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Has B u r l i n g t o n Resources attempted i n any way t o 

a r r i v e a t t h a t k i n d of an agreement? 

A. No. 

Q. Has the r e been any i n d i c a t i o n t o you whatsoever 

t h a t B u r l i n g t o n , other than you heard yesterday, but before 

yesterday, any i n d i c a t i o n t h a t B u r l i n g t o n i s i n t e r e s t e d i n 

n e g o t i a t i n g any of the terms? 

A. No, t h a t ' s the f i r s t I heard. 

Q. Okay. I s i t e s s e n t i a l , f o r you t o make a 

d e c i s i o n , and has i t been your experience i n the p r a c t i c e 

t h a t you've observed i n the i n d u s t r y , t h a t an operator 

seeking v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n of a working i n t e r e s t t h a t 

you administer w i l l provide t e c h n i c a l data concerning and 

supporting the d r i l l i n g of the prospect? 

A. Yes. And even i f we j u s t asked f o r the raw data, 

which i s u n i n t e r p r e t e d , and then we make our own d e c i s i o n 
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based on t h a t . 

Q. Okay. And of course, B u r l i n g t o n has not done 

t h a t i n t h i s case — 

A. No. 

Q. — true? 

Are you, as a member of the committee, 

r e p r e s e n t i n g a l l of the uncommitted i n t e r e s t s of the GLA-66 

owners? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And are they opposing the A p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

f o r c e pool? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And would you s t a t e t o the Examiner 

b a s i c a l l y i n summary why the A p p l i c a t i o n i s opposed? 

A. We f e e l l i k e we d i d n ' t receive the i n f o r m a t i o n we 

requested, so we couldn't make a d e c i s i o n based on no 

i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. I n your view, has B u r l i n g t o n made a genuine good-

f a i t h e f f o r t t o o b t a i n v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n of these 

i n t e r e s t s ? 

A. They n o t i f i e d us, but we f e l t l i k e i t ' s , Here, 

take i t or leave i t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. And the bank i s very l e e r y of being sued, so we 

couldn't make a de c i s i o n w i t h o u t any i n f o r m a t i o n . 
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Q. And i s t h a t — Of a l l the members of the 

committee you t a l k e d t o , whether they're banks or 

i n d i v i d u a l s or t r u s t e e s or whatever, has t h a t l i k e w i s e been 

t h e i r p o s i t i o n t h a t they cannot make a d e c i s i o n i n the dark 

or on the basis of t a k e - i t - o r - l e a v e - i t non-negotiable 

o f f e r s ? 

A. Yes. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Okay. Pass the witness and move 

the admission of E x h i b i t s A through O. 

MR. KELLAHIN: For the record, Mr. Examiner, we 

would o b j e c t t o the l i t i g a t i o n documents being admitted. 

We b e l i e v e they're not r e l e v a n t . They're E x h i b i t s D, E and 

F. With those exceptions, we have no o b j e c t i o n t o the 

other documents. 

MR. GALLEGOS: They bear on the question of the 

good f a i t h and the approach of B u r l i n g t o n t o n e g o t i a t e , or 

r a t h e r lack of go o d - f a i t h e f f o r t t o deal w i t h these p a r t i e s 

and as a matter of background. 

MR. CARROLL: What's the nature of t h i s 

l i t i g a t i o n , Mr. Gallegos? 

MR. GALLEGOS: This p a r t i c u l a r one i s where 

B u r l i n g t o n i s not f o l l o w i n g the terms of the 1986 amendment 

t h a t c a l l s f o r the payment of the o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y , under 

GLA-66. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I b e l i e v e w e ' l l go ahead and 
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admit these as evidence, Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

E x h i b i t s A through O w i l l be admitted as 

evidence. 

Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

CRO S S-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Ms. Cotton, i f y o u ' l l t u r n t o the d i s p l a y t h a t 

you've added, the convenient l o c a t o r map — i t ' s marked as 

E x h i b i t C — am I c o r r e c t i n understanding t h a t f o r the 

Marcotte w e l l i n Section 8, the GLA-66 group has no 

i n t e r e s t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. The p l a t shows a p o r t i o n of Section 9 f o r the 

Scott w e l l i n which the GLA-66 group has an i n t e r e s t i n the 

deep gas; i s t h a t not true? 

A. Right. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . One of your concerns i s having 

B u r l i n g t o n ' s seismic i n f o r m a t i o n t o evaluate your 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n Section 9 --

A. Yes. 

Q. — i s t h a t what you're seeking t o have? 

A. A l l the raw data, t e c h n i c a l i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. S p e c i f i c a l l y focused on the seismic information? 

A. Right. 
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Q. I n order t o discharge your f i d u c i a r y o b l i g a t i o n s , 

does t h a t suggest t o you t h a t you should have h i r e d your 

own g e o l o g i s t s and engineers t o make a study of the deep 

gas i n the San Juan Basin? 

A. Normally what we do i s receive the i n f o r m a t i o n 

from the company and then h i r e our engineer t o look over i t 

and make h i s own i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . 

Q. I r e a l i z e t h a t you have been i n v o l v e d w i t h Enron. 

I assume t h a t was i n southeastern New Mexico? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you been involved w i t h any other proposals 

concerning the development of the deep gas i n the San Juan 

Basin? 

A. No. 

Q. You recognize, as we a l l recognize, t h a t t h e r e i s 

simply no production yet es t a b l i s h e d i n the deep gas i n the 

San Juan Basin? 

A. Right. 

Q. Without conducting an e v a l u a t i o n on your own, 

through your own t e c h n i c a l people, how are you able t o 

determine t h a t the o f f e r s made t o you on behalf of 

B u r l i n g t o n were too low? 

A. Well, I thought the nonconsent p e n a l t y was h i g h , 

and also i t ' s normally our p o l i c y not t o s e l l minerals or 

r o y a l t y . And unless i t ' s , you know, q u i t e a b i t higher, we 
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j u s t u s u a l l y — e s p e c i a l l y i n a case where the i n t e r e s t i s 

nonproducing, we r e a l l y don't have a way t o evaluate i t , 

and we could be sued over t h a t i f we s e l l i t , and i t i s too 

low. I t ' s safer t o keep i t , I would t h i n k , than t o s e l l 

i t . 

Q. Have you attempted t o e s t a b l i s h a market p r i c e 

f o r t he deep gas i n the San Juan Basin t h a t ' s under your 

c o n t r o l ? 

A. No. 

Q. V i r t u a l l y impossible t o e s t a b l i s h one, i s n ' t i t , 

i n the absence of production? 

A. I t h i n k i f we h i r e d an engineer he would put some 

value on i t . 

Q. But you have not yet done t h a t ? 

A. No. 

Q. When we look a t the seismic i n f o r m a t i o n — and 

l e t ' s explore your p r o p o s i t i o n t h a t we hol d t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n c o n f i d e n t i a l w i t h regards t o p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n 

Section 9. Having t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n t o d i s c l o s e t o you 

gives you i n f o r m a t i o n w i t h regards t o p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n deep 

gas w i t h regards t o a l l the r e s t of the p r o p e r t y t h a t you 

c o n t r o l under GLA-66 t h a t ' s outside Section 9? 

A. Right. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

Thank you. 
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MR. HALL: I have no questions. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I've got a couple. You can 

go ahead. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARROLL: 

Q. Ms. Cotton, i f you'd r e f e r t o your e x h i b i t s H and 

I . I don't see a box here f o r — What would be the t r u s t 

w e l l - c o s t c o n t r i b u t i o n i f the w e l l i s a dry hole and you go 

nonconsent? I mean, i f you don't j o i n i n the w e l l , and you 

go nonconsent and i t ' s a dry hole, what i s your cost 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y ? 

A. I f i t ' s a dry hole, then nothing i f we're 

nonconsent. 

Q. That's c o r r e c t . 

And E x h i b i t I , i f the i f the t r u s t goes 

nonconsent what would B u r l i n g t o n ' s cost r e s p o n s i b i l i t y be 

on a dry hole? 

A. $176,000. 

Q. No, they'd have t o p i c k up your 65 percent t o o ; 

i s n ' t t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Oh, t h a t ' s t r u e , t h a t ' s t r u e . 

Q. So they'd bear the cost of 75 percent of the 

dryhole? 

A. That's t r u e . 

Q. Ms. Cotton, I n o t i c e a l o t of l e t t e r s from 
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B u r l i n g t o n t o you i n t h i s package. I don't see any l e t t e r s 

from you t o B u r l i n g t o n . Do they e x i s t ? And i f so, where 

are they? 

A. No, I d i d n ' t send any. I r e l i e d on Gene and Wat 

because I knew they were handling i t , and — 

Q. Since June of l a s t year? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you aware of any l e t t e r s from Mr. Gallegos t o 

B u r l i n g t o n , p r i o r t o the — the May 9th l e t t e r of t h i s 

year? 

A. I t h i n k t h a t was h i s f i r s t one a f t e r we received 

the A p r i l 29th l e t t e r . 

Q. So i t ' s i n response t o the A p r i l 29th l e t t e r ? 

A. Yes — 

Q. Did you ever c a l l --

A. — requesting i n f o r m a t i o n — 

Q. Did you c a l l B u r l i n g t o n and t e l l them t h e i r 

o f f e r s were unacceptable, or d i d you j u s t — 

A. No. 

Q. — put t h e i r l e t t e r s t o the side? 

A. I put them t o the side and t a l k e d t o Gene and 

Wat. 

Q. Were you aware of Mr. Gallegos c a l l i n g i n 

response t o any of these l e t t e r s , or do you t h i n k h i s f i r s t 

— The t r u s t ' s f i r s t response t o B u r l i n g t o n was dated May 
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9th. 

A. I t h i n k Wat c a l l e d down. I don't have i t i n my 

notes, but I t h i n k he t a l k e d t o them. 

Q. So when you t e s t i f i e d t h a t you received no phone 

c a l l s from B u r l i n g t o n , other than these l e t t e r s , w i t h no 

response d i d B u r l i n g t o n know who t o c a l l ? 

A. They had our address, and they pay us on a 

r e g u l a r basis on other t r u s t s , so i f they c a l l e d our o f f i c e 

— I don't know i f they have my name, but i f they c a l l e d 

our o f f i c e they would c e r t a i n l y t a l k t o — 

Q. But i f you would have r e p l i e d t o them and s a i d , 

Please contact me, you would have been the person they 

would have — 

A. Right. 

Q. — been called? 

You s t a t e t h a t t h i s 400-percent nonconsent 

p e n a l t y i s outrageous. What's the normal nonconsent 

pen a l t y you see i n operating agreements? 

A. Two t o three hundred. 

Q. You also t e s t i f i e d t h a t B u r l i n g t o n had given you 

an o f f e r on a t a k e - i t - o r - l e a v e - i t basis. I t appears t o me 

t h a t t h e i r o f f e r c o n t i n u a l l y increased through t h i s course 

of correspondence. So do you consider t h e i r l a s t o f f e r a 

t a k e - i t - o r - l e a v e - i t basis or the f i r s t o f f e r a t a k e - i t - o r -

l e a v e - i t basis? 
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A. I t appeared t o me they s a i d , you know, 

p a r t i c i p a t e , farm out or s e l l your i n t e r e s t . And we wanted 

more t e c h n i c a l i n f o r m a t i o n and d i d n ' t f e e l t h a t we could 

make a d e c i s i o n w i t h o u t i t . 

Q. Have you h i r e d a g e o l o g i s t t o review the 

a v a i l a b l e p u b l i c i n f o r m a t i o n regarding the deep San Juan 

gas w e l l s t h a t have been d r i l l e d ? 

A. No, but the executive committee had reviewed some 

i n f o r m a t i o n and we've a l l shared what we know, not 

s p e c i f i c a l l y on t h i s w e l l . 

Q. You also t e s t i f i e d t h a t — l e t ' s see, I t h i n k i t 

was the — E x h i b i t L, the November 20th, 1996, l e t t e r from 

B u r l i n g t o n , the l a s t sentence of the f i r s t paragraph: 

"This w e l l i s very high r i s k . . . a n d very expensive..." And 

you considered t h a t t o be a discouragement i n j o i n i n g the 

w e l l ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How would you l i k e t o have seen t h a t worded? 

Would you l i k e t o have seen, Even though t h i s w e l l i s very 

expensive, we hope t o h i t a p r o l i f i c o i l and gas w e l l and 

get t e n times back our money; t h a t ' s what we hope f o r ? 

That would have been encouraging? I don't — I don't 

understand what you wanted i n the l e t t e r . 

A. Well, i t j u s t seems l i k e they're saying t h a t , you 

know, the p r o b a b i l i t y i s very low, i t ' s probably not going 
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t o make a w e l l , and i t ' s going t o be very expensive, so 

you'd be b e t t e r t o go nonconsent. And we'd be bearing most 

of the cost i f we j o i n e d them. 

Q. I f t h a t ' s , i n f a c t , B u r l i n g t o n ' s o p i n i o n , 

wouldn't you consider t h a t t o be, you know, d i s c l o s u r e or 

honest disc l o s u r e ? 

A. Well, on one hand, I t h i n k by them c o n t i n u i n g t o 

o f f e r t o buy our i n t e r e s t t h a t they knew something we 

d i d n ' t , so they're t r y i n g t o buy our i n t e r e s t . And then 

they come back and say, Well, i t ' s very high r i s k and very 

expensive, but w e ' l l buy you out. 

Q. Yeah, I was t r y i n g t o t h i n k here of an analogous 

s i t u a t i o n . You're a t r u s t o f f i c e r , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you deal i n r e a l estate? 

A. No. 

Q. Well, l e t me pose t h i s question t o you: Let's 

say the t r u s t owned a piece of r e a l e s t a t e t h a t was — and 

you were o f f e r e d $100,000. The p o t e n t i a l buyer has spent 

$50,000 l i n i n g up another buyer f o r the p r o p e r t y , and he 

has a p r i c e , and t h a t buyer w i l l buy i t a t $2 00,000. 

Now, i s the buyer from you t h a t ' s l i n e d up the 

next t r a n s a c t i o n — i s he o b l i g a t e d t o t e l l you he has t h i s 

buyer f o r $200,000? 

A. No. 
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Q. Why not? That would be f u l l d i s c l o s u r e of a l l 

a v a i l a b l e i n f o r m a t i o n , wouldn't i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i f he d i d d i s c l o s e t h a t second buyer, then he 

j u s t wasted $50,000 developing t h a t prospect, d i d n ' t he? 

A. Right. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Mr. Examiner, I ' d l i k e t o 

interp o s e t h a t since we're t a l k i n g about the law, the law 

re q u i r e s t h a t i f you di s c l o s e anything, you have t o make 

f u l l and complete d i s c l o s u r e . So i f you undertake t o say 

something i s blah-blah-blah, very expensive, high r i s k , 

then you have t o d i s c l o s e e v e r y t h i n g . Once you've 

undertaken t o say something — 

MR. CARROLL: I f you want t o b r i e f t h a t issue — 

MR. GALLEGOS: I ' d l i k e — 

MR. CARROLL: — regarding o i l and gas law, I ' d 

love t o see i t . 

MR. GALLEGOS: Well, you seem t o be arguing the 

law w i t h the witness, and I j u s t want t o say t h a t ' s what — 

MR. CARROLL: I'm not arguing the law w i t h the 

witness, I'm posing a business scenario t o her — 

MR. GALLEGOS: And then — 

MR. CARROLL: — which seems p r e t t y — 

MR. GALLEGOS: — argue, i f you represent i n your 

example, i f you represent t o somebody, you say, Well, the 
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p r o p e r t y i s only worth $100,000 because X, and you know 

i t ' s $2 00,000, you've got a o b l i g a t i o n — once you've 

undertaken t o say something, you've got an o b l i g a t i o n t o 

say the whole t h i n g t r u t h f u l l y , and t h a t has t o be the 

context of t h i s l e t t e r . 

MR. CARROLL: Well, i f you make an o f f e r f o r 

$100,000, you're saying t h a t the pr o p e r t y i s worth the 

$100,000? I s t h a t what you're t e l l i n g me, Mr. Gallegos? 

MR. GALLEGOS: I n t h i s case we have somebody 

making an o f f e r who then makes a r e p r e s e n t a t i o n about the 

circumstances surrounding i t . And I'm saying i n t h a t case 

or i n the case of the r e a l estate t r a n s a c t i o n t h a t you've 

proposed, the law puts an o b l i g a t i o n on you t h a t once you 

s t a r t speaking about i t , then you have a duty t o t e l l the 

complete s t o r y . You can't j u s t give a p a r t of i t . 

And they've undertaken here t o — 

MR. CARROLL: So i f t h a t person says, I've found 

a buyer f o r t h i s property, I ' l l o f f e r you $100,000, you 

have t o t e l l t h a t person — 

MR. GALLEGOS: No. 

MR. CARROLL: — t h a t I have a buyer f o r 

$200,000? 

MR. GALLEGOS: No, i f t h a t ' s a l l you've s a i d , 

t h a t ' s — you don't have t o . But i f you s t a r t 

undertaking — 
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MR. CARROLL: B r i e f t h i s issue f o r me on o i l and 

gas law. I f you o f f e r t o buy a pro p e r t y and say the odds 

of a w e l l — or of a w e l l ' s success are low, t h a t you have 

an o b l i g a t i o n t o supply them a l l the seismic i n f o r m a t i o n 

you've developed. 

MR. GALLEGOS: We'll be happy t o b r i e f the law on 

d i s c l o s u r e and re p r e s e n t a t i o n and mis r e p r e s e n t a t i o n , sure. 

MR. CARROLL: Yeah, ten pages, max. 

Q. (By Mr. C a r r o l l ) Ms. Cotton, you're aware t h a t 

Amoco and Cross Timbers have farmed out t h e i r acreage? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And are you aware t h a t the acreage they farmed 

out includes a l l t h e i r acreage i n the prospect area, r a t h e r 

than i n Section 9? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Why do you t h i n k they d i d t h a t , r a t h e r than 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n the well? 

A. They had a mutually agreeable agreement, or they 

were s a t i s f i e d w i t h what B u r l i n g t o n n e g o t i a t e d w i t h them. 

Q. Could i t be t h a t they thought t h i s w e l l was high 

r i s k and i t was too high r i s k f o r them, so they'd r a t h e r 

farm out then put the money up f r o n t ? 

A. I don't know what they were t h i n k i n g . 

Q. You've t e s t i f i e d , i n your due d i l i g e n c e , i f 

there's a l o t of property involved and th e r e are a l o t of 
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w e l l s , you h i r e your own engineer? 

A. Yes. 

Q. But you haven't h i r e d your own g e o l o g i s t here? 

A. No, i n t h i s case I b a s i c a l l y r e l y on the 

executive committee. And when necessary, I ' l l go t o the 

out s i d e , but u s u a l l y we have engineers on the executive 

committee, and I u s u a l l y r e l y on them. 

MR. CARROLL: That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Ms. Cotton, i n your normal course of d u t i e s are 

you able t o neg o t i a t e w i t h p a r t i e s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And d i d you make any attempt, a f t e r you received 

the f i r s t two l e t t e r s w i t h Meridian, t o contact them and 

ne g o t i a t e w i t h them? 

A. No, because I was t a l k i n g t o Wat and our 

at t o r n e y , and I thought i t was best t o l e t them handle i t , 

r a t h e r than a l l of us c a l l i n g them. 

Q. So from the very beginning, from June of 1996, 

you had other people involved i n t h i s besides you? 

A. Yes, the executive committee. 

Q. Do you know i f they were i n contact w i t h Meridian 

or — 

A. Yes, they were. 
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Q. — attempting — ? 

Do you know what date t h a t f i r s t contact 

occurred? 

A. I know Wat contacted them by phone. I know Gene 

sent a l e t t e r a f t e r we received t h e i r A p r i l 29th. I t 

seemed t o me t h a t I remember hearing, you know, Wat t a l k t o 

them p r e t t y o f t e n . George Daly may have c a l l e d them. I 

don't remember. I j u s t remember hearing people say they've 

t o them, and I d i d n ' t make a note of the date. 

Q. Ms. Cotton, have you been i n v o l v e d , i n your 

course of duty, i n a s i t u a t i o n where somebody was t r y i n g t o 

d r i l l a rank w i l d c a t such as i s being proposed i n t h i s 

case? 

A. The l a s t two recent ones i n which we 

p a r t i c i p a t e d , t here was production a l l around, so they were 

not c l a s s i f i e d as w i l d c a t . I can't remember a w i l d c a t . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I have nothing f u r t h e r . This 

witness may be excused, i f you have — 

MR. HALL: One follow-up, since we opened up a 

new area. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Ms. Cotton, Mr. C a r r o l l asked you about your 

knowledge of the Amoco farmout. I t ' s t r u e , i s n ' t i t , i f 

you know, t h a t Amoco's farmout c a l l s f o r t h e i r 
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p a r t i c i p a t i o n on a w e l l - b y - w e l l basis, i f you know? 

A. Okay, I d i d n ' t know. 

Q- Do you know? 

A. No. 

MR. GALLEGOS: We c a l l Tom Moore. 

THOMAS E. MOORE, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

BY MR. GALLEGOS: 

Q. State your name, please. 

A. Thomas Edward Moore. 

Q. Where do you l i v e , Mr. Moore? 

A. Midland, Texas. 

Q. What i s your business? 

A. O i l and gas production, development, d r i l l i n g , 

and ranching. 

Q. Okay, and what i s your post-secondary education? 

A. I graduated from P h i l l i p s U n i v e r s i t y w i t h a 

bachelor of science degree, a major i n geology and a major 

i n business. 

Q. Okay. What i s your experience i n the o i l and gas 

business p r i o r t o the — p r i o r t o your present — 

A. A f t e r graduation from c o l l e g e , I j o i n e d Dow Well, 

which i s a d i v i s i o n of Dow Chemical, i n 1959 and stayed 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 
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w i t h them through 1979. 

Q. What i s the business of Dow Well? 

A. I t ' s an o i l - w e l l - s e r v i c e f i r m , s t i m u l a t i o n , 

f r a c t u r i n g , cementing, t h i s type o p e r a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. And you were w i t h Dow w e l l f o r some 2 0 

years? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Just give us an overview of the work t h a t you d i d 

f o r Dow w e l l . 

A. Well, I s t a r t e d i n the f i e l d working w i t h them, 

i n engineering, I was i n sales, a d d i t i o n a l engineering and 

i n management throughout my career w i t h them. 

Q. Okay, what was your f i n a l post? 

A. I was r e g i o n a l manager f o r the West Coast and 

Alaska. 

Q. I n t h a t capacity, what were your 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s ? 

A. O v e r a l l , the e n t i r e operation was my 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , ranging from personnel t o technology, the 

e n t i r e b a l l of wax. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . You l e f t Dow Well i n 1979? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And what d i d you do then? 

A. I bought a small production company i n Midland, 

Texas, and have been — have had i t since. 
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Q. Okay. Where i s the production of t h a t company? 

A. At the time I bought i t , we had pr o d u c t i o n i n New 

Mexico and Texas and Wyoming. We've since added pr o d u c t i o n 

i n Oklahoma and North Dakota. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And I also am operations manager f o r the Moore 

e n t i t i e s . 

Q. Okay. On the B u r l i n g t o n proposals here f o r the 

two w e l l s i n question, there's a l i s t i n g of Lee Wayne Moore 

and JoAnne Montgomery Moore, Trustees. 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Who are those people? 

A. Trustees — Wayne Moore i s the only one l i v i n g ; 

JoAnne Montgomery Moore i s deceased. But — and — What do 

you mean by, Who are they? 

Q. Well, what r e l a t i o n s h i p do you have t o them, 

business r e l a t i o n s h i p ? 

A. Business r e l a t i o n s h i p , I am operations manager 

f o r t h e i r p r o p e r t i e s and investments and t r u s t s and t h i s 

s o r t of t h i n g , t r u s t e e on a l l of the t r u s t s . 

Q. Okay. JoAnn Montgomery Moore i s deceased? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And what i s the age of Wayne Moore? 

A. Eighty-three. 

Q. Okay. And i s there also a f a m i l y r e l a t i o n s h i p 
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between you — 

A. Yes ~ 

Q. — and Mr. Moore? 

A. — Wayne Moore i s my uncle. 

Q. Okay. And are you authorized t o appear and 

represent — 

A. Yes ~ 

Q. — t h e i r i n t e r e s t s ? 

A. — i n a l l c a p a c i t i e s . 

Q. Are you f u l l y acquainted w i t h t h e i r p r o p e r t i e s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And are you also f u l l y acquainted w i t h the 

var i o u s communications t h a t have gone on between B u r l i n g t o n 

and the Wayne Moore i n t e r e s t s concerning the Marcotte 2 and 

the Scott 24 well? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Okay. What i s your general business experience 

of t h i s p r o d u c t i o n company i n the State of New Mexico? 

Would you give us some idea of that? 

A. Oh, we have d r i l l e d w e l l s i n the State of New 

Mexico, i n the southeast p o r t i o n . We have put together 

d r i l l i n g blocks and put together u n i t s and s o l d them. 

We've formed our own u n i t s , d r i l l i n g u n i t s , have operated 

them, from my business experiences from p u t t i n g i t together 

on through the completion and production of i t . 
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Q. Have you frequently been a participant as a 

nonoperator i n w e l l s t h a t are proposed by other p a r t i e s ? 

A. Oh, yes, yes. 

Q. Have those included w e l l s t h a t are proposed and 

operated by B u r l i n g t o n Resources? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Conoco? 

A. B u r l i n g t o n , Conoco, Texaco, Amoco, Tenneco when 

they were t h e r e , Cross Timbers, Crown C e n t r a l . 

Q. Would i t be f a i r t o say t h a t g e n e r a l l y your 

approach i s t o be a consent p a r t i c i p a n t , paying your share 

i n w e l l s t h a t are being d r i l l e d ? 

A. I cannot remember a time i n the San Juan Basin 

t h a t we have not been a working i n t e r e s t operator — I mean 

a working i n t e r e s t owner — t h a t we have not taken a p a r t 

i n the w e l l . 

Q. Okay. And about how many w e l l s do the Moore 

i n t e r e s t s have i n t e r e s t i n i n the San Juan Basin, j u s t the 

San Juan Basin? 

A. Oh, i n c l u d i n g o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t i e s and r o y a l t i e s , 

probably close t o 3 00 w e l l s , s c a t t e r e d throughout. 

Q. Okay. Now, what has been the common p r a c t i c e 

t h a t you have fo l l o w e d , and what has been your experience 

i n f o l l o w i n g t h a t p r a c t i c e , i n regard t o being able t o 

o b t a i n i n f o r m a t i o n from the proponent of the w e l l i n order 
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f o r you t o make a d e c i s i o n whether or not t o p a r t i c i p a t e ? 

A. Well, normally we receive s t r u c t u r a l maps, cross-

s e c t i o n s , seismic i n f o r m a t i o n , t h i s s o r t of t h i n g , p r i o r , 

so w e ' l l know what we're doing. This i s the i n d u s t r y norm, 

whether i t be i n New Mexico or whether i t be i n Oklahoma or 

Texas. 

And I've been on both sides of t h i s fence, 

s e l l i n g u n i t s and t a k i n g p a r t i n them, and w e l l s , so I know 

what the norm i s on both sides on i t . I f we put togethe r a 

d r i l l i n g block and t r y t o s e l l i t , we f u r n i s h a l l the 

i n f o r m a t i o n we have on i t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Does the Wayne Moore ownership 

in c l u d e i n t e r e s t i n both Section 8 and Section 9? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay, and i s t h a t i n t e r e s t the ex t e n t t h a t was 

p r e v i o u s l y represented by Mr. S t r i c k l e r i n h i s testimony, 

presented — 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. Let me j u s t q u i c k l y ask you about a few of 

the e x h i b i t s you have here. I s E x h i b i t P a t i t l e t a k e o f f 

t h a t i l l u s t r a t e s the ownership i n what's c a l l e d the Arch 

Rock prospect? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I t would be the two sections i n question? 

A. I have Section 8 here; i s t h i s the one — 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. Okay, j u s t Section 8? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Why was t h i s obtained? 

A. I asked Mr. S t r i c k l e r t o send me the i n f o r m a t i o n , 

and he k i n d l y d i d so, sent i t t o me. 

Q. Okay, he provided t h i s t o you? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And i s the nomenclature of prospect Arch 

Rock something t h a t — 

A. I had no idea what Arch Rock represented, but I 

knew they were going by the deep Penn t e s t . 

Q. Okay. When d i d you f i r s t f i n d out about the deep 

Penn t e s t or anything B u r l i n g t o n was doing t h a t i n v o l v e d 

your acreage? 

A. I t h i n k i t was the A p r i l 22nd i n f o r m a t i o n ; I 

t h i n k t h a t was the f i r s t i n f o r m a t i o n we had on i t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . You d i d not have any ove r t u r e from 

B u r l i n g t o n , communication or anything p r i o r t o A p r i l of 

t h i s year? 

A. Not concerning a deep Peen t e s t . 

Q. Well, anything else w i t h them concerning other 

w e l l s ? 

A. I n what respect? 

Q. Well, you said not concerning the deep Penn 

t e s t — 
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A. No. Well, we receive d a i l y r e p o r t s when they're 

d r i l l i n g a w e l l or they're working over a w e l l or what 

the y ' r e going t o do, u n i t development or d r i l l i n g . Of 

course, we receive t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n on other w e l l s , but not 

on the deep Penn t e s t . 

Q. Okay, t h a t ' s what I was t r y i n g — The purpose of 

my question, I'm asking only concerning the ownerships i n 

Section 8 and Section 9. And your testimony would be, 

t h i s — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — i n A p r i l was the f i r s t — 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Was t h i s an unacceptable proposal, i n 

your opinion? 

A. Well, r e a l l y , i t was unacceptable, but t h e r e was 

not a — You know, we had no i n f o r m a t i o n . A l l i t s a i d i s , 

We're going t o d r i l l t h i s w e l l . E i t h e r j o i n , farm out, or 

w e ' l l f o r c e - p o o l you. 

So we t r i e d t o get some a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n , 

and n o t h i n g r e l e v a n t or p e r t i n e n t t o what we needed d i d we 

o b t a i n . 

Q. How d i d you t r y and get a d d i t i o n a l information? 

A. We c a l l e d Mr. S t r i c k l e r . 

Q. Okay, and what was h i s response? 

A. Well, number one, I asked f o r the seismic and he 
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s a i d , We can't send you the seismic. 

And I said, Wait a minute, we own the p r o p e r t y , 

number one. I'm not sure we — t h a t i t i s n ' t seismic 

trespass. We were never t o l d t h a t t h e r e was a 3-D shooting 

going on through t h e r e , and t h i s very w e l l could represent 

seismic trespass. I t would i n Texas. 

And he sai d i t was p r o p r i e t a r y and we could not 

have t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n . 

And I f e l t l i k e i t was a necessity t o have i t . 

Q. Okay. And have you received seismic before from 

others — 

A. Oh, sure. 

Q. — who have d r i l l e d wells? 

A. That's the i n d u s t r y norm, i s -- Other w e l l s , 

sure, when you're going t o — when th e r e ' s , you know, we 

see some reason f o r d r i l l i n g the w e l l . 

This w e l l was j u s t stuck out t h e r e and s a i d , 

We're going t o d r i l l i t . The i n f o r m a t i o n we received was 

not r e a l l y p e r t i n e n t when you look a t something 2 0 or 3 0 or 

80 miles away. 

Q. E x h i b i t R i s also dated A p r i l 22, 1997, and i t ' s 

referenced as a farmout l e t t e r of i n t e n t . 

A. Okay. 

Q. Did t h i s farmout proposal i n v o l v e only the 

p r o p e r t y i n Section 8 and Section 9? 
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A. No, that was really the ludicrous part about i t , 

the one w e l l i n Section 8 and one i n Section 9, and they're 

t a l k i n g about wanting i t a l l , and i f you t u r n over t o 

paragraph 3 i n t h i s , i t says — no, paragraph 4 — t h a t 

" B u r l i n g t o n s h a l l have the r i g h t and o p t i o n t o earn the 

remainder of Farmor's leasehold i n the Farmout Lands, on a 

u n i t by u n i t basis, under the same terms..." That's 22 

sections they're t a l k i n g about. 

Q. Okay. Now, l e t me ask you t h i s : I f you obtained 

seismic i n f o r m a t i o n or other t e c h n i c a l data concerning 

Section 8 and Section 9, i s the r e any way f o r you t o know, 

w i t h what's been imparted t o you from B u r l i n g t o n , whether 

t h a t has any A p p l i c a t i o n beyond those two sections? 

A. No, because I — You'd have t o have the e n t i r e 

o v e rlay of a l l t h e i r seismic t o know anything about 

anything other than these two sections. You know, you'd 

have t o have a l l of i t . 

Q. Okay. But do you know whether having a l l of i t , 

whether i t has a s i g n i f i c a n c e beyond those sections? 

A. Well, the i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the seismic would 

p o i n t out where there were pinnacle r e e f s or highs or where 

they might be, but a l o t would depend on, a f t e r these two 

w e l l s were d r i l l e d , how accurate t h e i r seismic was. I 

understand from another source t h a t they s a i d t h e i r data i s 

such t h a t they're not even sure they can i n t e r p r e t i t 
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c o r r e c t l y . 

Q. Have you t a l k e d t o anybody else a t B u r l i n g t o n 

besides Mr. S t r i c k l e r ? 

A. I t a l k e d b r i e f l y t o Dawson, the g e o l o g i s t , who 

then t a l k e d t o Wayne Moore. 

And as a f o o t n o t e , you — Something came up about 

g e o l o g i s t s e a r l i e r . Wayne Moore went up i n t h i s country i n 

19- — l a t e F o r t i e s , e a r l y F i f t i e s , d i d a great deal of 

seismic work a l l over, a t one time had 40,000 acres, i n the 

Cedar H i l l area lease. So very w e l l q u a l i f i e d t o do 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n s of the g e o l o g i c a l area — 

Q. Did you l e a r n any- — 

A. — w i t h the proper i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. Yes, s i r . Did you l e a r n anything from Mr. 

Dawson? 

A. No, not t h a t would help us. 

Q. Okay. I f you were t o o b t a i n the i n f o r m a t i o n from 

B u r l i n g t o n so t h a t you could make a d e c i s i o n concerning 

your i n t e r e s t , are you w i l l i n g t o consider t h a t 

c o n f i d e n t i a l and not share i t w i t h any other party? 

A. C e r t a i n l y . I t h i n k we t o l d Ms. S t r i c k l e r t h a t we 

would consider i t c o n f i d e n t i a l . 

Q. Okay. 

A. But a t no time d i d he make any suggestion t h a t we 

could see out t h e r e , j u s t — That was i t , p e r i o d . 
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Q. And what would t h i s farmout on 3 0 sections o f f e r 

you i n r e t u r n f o r t y i n g up t h a t much acreage f o r p o t e n t i a l 

d r i l l i n g by Burlington? What would you get i n r e t u r n , 

under t h e i r o f f e r ? 

A. Oh, minimal. I f we farmed i t out, we got f i v e 

percent, p r o p o r t i o n a t e l y reduced. And we have 87.5-percent 

leases i n the area. So, you know, we're down t o less than 

.2 of a percent i n t e r e s t . I be l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

So no, i t i s n ' t f e a s i b l e a t a l l — 

Q. Or a — down t o a 2.5-percent o v e r r i d e — 

A. No, we're — 

Q. — wouldn't t h a t be? 

A. No, we're down t o less than two percent — two-

te n t h s of a percent, two-tenths. 

I n other words, we have — I f we took a f i v e 

percent, p r o p o r t i o n a t e l y reduced, our i n t e r e s t i s n i n e -

point-some-odd percent i n Section 8. 

Q. Oh, okay. And then i s E x h i b i t S also dated A p r i l 

22, and t h a t was a m a i l i n g received by you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. 

A. We have a 2.2517-percent i n t e r e s t i n the 

Marcotte. 

Q. Okay. What i s E x h i b i t 10? 

A. E x h i b i t 10 — I'm — 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

263 

Q. I'm so r r y , T. 

A. T. 

Q. Excuse me, threw you o f f . 

A. This i s another a l t e r - — or a working i n t e r e s t 

owner l e t t e r from B u r l i n g t o n , w i t h the proposal t o d r i l l , 

and they're asking f o r our prompt agreement t o t h i s , and 

w i t h an op e r a t i n g agreement attached. And they've sent us 

an AFE attached also, I b e l i e v e . 

Q. Okay. 

A. And t h i s i s an o f f e r f o r us t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the 

w e l l , i s what I'm t r y i n g t o say, yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. How many conversations have you had w i t h 

Mr. S t r i c k l e r around the time i n A p r i l t h a t you began 

r e c e i v i n g these? 

A. Oh, I suspect we've t a l k e d a dozen times on the 

phone. 

Q. Okay. Has there been any i n d i c a t i o n t o n e g o t i a t e 

or t o make an agreement t h a t would be acceptable t o you? 

A. We have had nothing t h a t was acceptable t o us. 

Q. Okay. What i s E x h i b i t U? 

A. This r e f e r s back t o the l e t t e r of A p r i l 22nd 

regarding the Marcotte, and i f we don't do something i n a 

hu r r y they're going t o compulsory f o r c e pool us. 

Q. Okay. Now, i s E x h i b i t V — 

A. E x h i b i t what? 
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Q. — V, a July 1, 1997, letter from you to Mr. 

S t r i c k l e r on t h i s matter — 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. — of the Marcotte Number 2 well? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , we d i d make a c o u n t e r o f f e r . 

Q. Okay. Now, l e t me ask you t h i s : Were you aware 

by J u l y 1, 1997, t h a t the Marcotte w e l l was already being 

d r i l l e d ? 

A. No, I don't be l i e v e I was. Somewhere along i n 

t h e r e , I found out i t was being d r i l l e d , and I don't 

remember e x a c t l y when i t was, t o be honest. I could look 

a t my daybook and t e l l you, and I don't have t h a t w i t h me 

here. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And I have not received any r e p l y back from Mr. 

S t r i c k l e r on our counterproposal. 

Q. That you sent on Ju l y 1 — 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. — 1997? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. So was the f i r s t i n f o r m a t i o n you received 

concerning the r e a c t i o n of B u r l i n g t o n t o t h i s proposal the 

r e j e c t i o n t h a t Mr. S t r i c k l e r s t a t e d on the stand here 

yesterday, J u l y the 10th? 

A. That's t r u e . 
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Q. Okay. W i l l you e x p l a i n what E x h i b i t W shows, Mr. 

Moore? 

A. Well, i t shows Moore's i n t e r e s t i n Section 8, 

what the dryhole cost would be, what the completion cost 

would be, h i s t o t a l cost. 

And then i t shows w e l l cost c o n t r i b u t i o n on a 

nonconsent basis. Moore's i n t e r e s t i s 2.25 percent. And 

i t a lso shows Burl i n g t o n ' s i n t e r e s t , which i s 9.31 percent. 

Q. Okay. Are you, i n f a c t , q u i t e i n t e r e s t e d i n 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n t h i s prospect i f you're provided 

s u f f i c i e n t i n f o r m a t i o n — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — on which you can make a decision? 

A. Yes, as I p r e v i o u s l y s a i d , I don't t h i n k we've 

ever turned down the o p p o r t u n i t y t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n a w e l l 

i n the San Juan Basin t h a t we've had a working i n t e r e s t i n . 

Q. How would you ch a r a c t e r i z e the conduct of 

B u r l i n g t o n toward t h i s Moore i n t e r e s t , i n regard t o 

o b t a i n i n g agreement? 

A. Somewhat l i k e we're ribbon c l e r k s and we're going 

t o do what we want t o you. You know, j u s t t o say, Here's a 

w e l l , we're going t o d r i l l i t , good luck — That's not the 

i n d u s t r y norm, t h a t ' s not the way i t ' s done. 

Q. Have the representations c o n s t a n t l y been, This i s 

hi g h r i s k , b a s i c a l l y discourage v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n ? 
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A. Their l e t t e r s have s t a t e d i t ' s h i g h r i s k . The 

i n i t i a l l e t t e r , I t h i n k , o f f e r e d — wanted us t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n i t , and since then we've had the other 

options t o farm out or go nonconsent. But yes, i t has been 

as a h i g h - r i s k prospect. 

MR. GALLEGOS: That's a l l the questions I have. 

I pass the witness and move the admission of E x h i b i t s P 

through W. 

MR. KELLAHIN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: E x h i b i t s P through W w i l l be 

admitted as evidence. 

Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Moore, when you look a t the San Juan Basin, 

how many deep gas penetrations have th e r e been? 

A. How many successful or t r i e s ? 

Q. Attempts. 

A. Gosh, I don't know. Someone gave the f i g u r e s 

yesterday on how many attempts there have been. 

Q. My r e c o l l e c t i o n i s about 28. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Do you know of any successful deep gas 

pe n e t r a t i o n s i n the San Juan Basin? 
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A. No, I know of none. 

Q. What i s the i n d u s t r y norm i n the San Juan Basin 

f o r deep gas e x p l o r a t i o n i n terms of sharing i n f o r m a t i o n ? 

A. Pardon me? 

Q. Yes, s i r . The deep gas i n the San Juan Basin — 

A. Well, i f there has not been any su c c e s s f u l , I 

don't know t h a t t h e r e 1 s any i n d u s t r y norm t h e r e . 

Q. So how — 

A. When was the l a s t w e l l d r i l l e d — And l e t me ask 

you t h i s : When was the l a s t w e l l d r i l l e d i n the San Juan 

Basin? 

Q. Well, have you explored t h a t ? 

A. Deep well? 

Q. Have you explored t h a t ? 

A. Oh, 14 or 15 years ago, I suspect. 

Q. You're a g e o l o g i s t . Have you looked a t the 

p u b l i c l y a v a i l a b l e data on the e x i s t i n g deep gas 

penet r a t i o n ? 

A. I've glanced at some of i t . Wayne Moore has done 

most of the geology on i t . 

Q. Have you --

A. Let me go a l i t t l e f a r t h e r . I don't know what 

the norm was 14 years ago, but I — i n the — Well, I won't 

go i n t o i t . Go ahead. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . How do you conclude i t ' s t he 
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norm to share proprietary seismic data for deep gas San 

Juan attempts i f there i s not norm ever e s t a b l i s h e d f o r 

those i n t e r e s t s ? 

A. I s a i d an i n d u s t r y norm; I d i d not say the San 

Juan Basin norm. I said the i n d u s t r y norm i s t o — 

Q. Let's look a t the San Juan Basin. Have you 

attempted t o con s t r u c t any cross-sections w i t h regards t o 

the Pennsylvanian i n the San Juan Basin? 

A. No, I have not. 

Q. Have you attempted t o c o n s t r u c t a s t r u c t u r e map? 

A. No, I have not. I was c e r t a i n t h a t B u r l i n g t o n 

had, and knew what they had, i s the reason they decided t o 

d r i l l the w e l l . They d i d n ' t p u l l i t out of a hat 

someplace. So they had t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n , and we'd expect 

t o r e c e i v e i t from them. 

Q. Did you o f f e r t o pay B u r l i n g t o n f o r any p o r t i o n 

of the seismic work i n order t o have access f o r t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n ? 

A. This was never an o p t i o n . 

Q. I n terms of your — Have you attempted a t a l l t o 

make any an a l y s i s of the v a l u a t i o n or the market value of 

your deep gas p r o p e r t i e s i n the San Juan Basin? 

A. I t ' s an i m p o s s i b i l i t y t o put a market value on i t 

a t t h i s p o i n t . 

Q. Why i s tha t ? 
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A. Because there i s no deep gas i n the San Juan 

Basin. 

However, B u r l i n g t o n must have done so themselves. 

Q. Your l a s t o f f e r l e t t e r of J u l y 1st, i t ' s E x h i b i t 

v — 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. — am I c o r r e c t i n understanding t h a t your best 

o f f e r t o B u r l i n g t o n i s t h a t you want t o r e t a i n an 

o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y of 27.5 percent? I s t h a t — 

A. That's the o f f e r I made i n i t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . 

A. We're w i l l i n g t o t a l k t o them about another 

o f f e r . 

Q. Well, l e t ' s t a l k about t h i s o f f e r . 

A. Okay. 

Q. The 27.5 percent, i s t h a t net t o Moore, or are 

t h e r e other overrides t h a t you have t o — 

A. No, net t o Moore. 

Q. — s u b t r a c t from th a t ? 

You want t o keep 2 7.5 percent. How d i d you 

e s t a b l i s h t h a t as a f a i r — 

A. Because I t h i n k there are some 60-percent leases 

i n the Basin. I've been t o l d t h a t t h e r e were. 

Q. So you want t o d e l i v e r a 60-percent NRI lease and 

keep 27.5 percent o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t i e s ? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And how d i d you ever e s t a b l i s h t h a t was a 

reasonable market p o s i t i o n f o r you t o take f o r the deep gas 

i n the San Juan Basin? 

A. I guess the same way t h a t B u r l i n g t o n thought t h a t 

a f i v e - p e r c e n t was a reasonable step t o take. 

Q. Have you had experience w i t h seismic data? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s i t reasonable t o conclude t h a t seismic data 

o f t e n i s very s u b j e c t i v e and i n t e r p r e t i v e and can be h i g h l y 

speculative? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. When you said you have p a r t i c i p a t i o n or i n t e r e s t 

i n perhaps 3 00 w e l l s i n the San Juan Basin on behalf of the 

Moore i n t e r e s t s — 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. — i s any of t h a t production below the base of 

the Dakota i n the San Juan Basin? 

A. I don't believe so. 

Q. This i s a l l — 

A. — Dakota, Mesaverde, P i c t u r e d C l i f f s , F r u i t l a n d 

Coal. 

Q. When you look a t the Moore i n t e r e s t p o s i t i o n i n 

terms of acreage i n the San Juan Basin f o r the deep gas, 

what i s your acreage p o s i t i o n ? 
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A. I don't have an idea a t a l l what the e n t i r e t h i n g 

i s . 

Q. Your p r o p o s i t i o n i s t h a t you need t o see the 

seismic data; i s t h a t not true? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. You do not want the seismic d i s c l o s u r e l i m i t e d 

j u s t t o Sections 8 and 9; i s t h a t also true? 

A. No, I d i d n ' t — That's not t r u e . We need t o see 

i t on 8 and 9 t o decide what we're going t o do t h e r e — 

Q. And I understood you — 

A. — t o be able t o enough a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n t o 

i n t e r p r e t t h a t area. 

Q. That's what — 

A. I would — Excuse me, go ahead. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What I'm asking you i s , i n order t o 

make a judgment about 8 and 9, the d i s c l o s u r e of t h a t 

seismic i n f o r m a t i o n t o you i s i n s u f f i c i e n t because you t o l d 

us you need t o see a l l of the seismic data t h a t B u r l i n g t o n 

has i n the San Juan Basin t o come t o some conclusion about 

8 and 9? 

A. No, I t o l d you I had t o see i t a l l t o evaluate 

a l l of Moore's p r o p e r t i e s i n the San Juan Basin, as f a r as 

deep gas production. 

Q. So i f we d i s c l o s e t h i s t o you and you s i g n a 

c o n f i d e n t i a l i t y agreement, despite the c o n f i d e n t i a l i t y 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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agreement, you can use t h a t t o evaluate your other p r o p e r t y 

i n the San Juan Basin? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you want t o do t h a t w i t h o u t paying f o r the 

seismic? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When we look a t the Marcotte w e l l , the Moore 

i n t e r e s t i s 2.25 percent? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. You would cut a check f o r about $52,000 t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e ? 

A. I f we p a r t i c i p a t e d , yes. 

Q. I f you don't p a r t i c i p a t e , then B u r l i n g t o n pays 

your share and you don't have any exposure about a cost 

expense t o you? 

A. Repeat t h a t , please. 

Q. Yes, s i r . I f you don't pay and you go 

nonconsent, $52,000 i s paid by B u r l i n g t o n , and they recover 

t h a t out of f u t u r e production, i f t h e r e i s any? 

A. Or i f — l i k e the P h i l l i p s w e l l t h a t ' s made i n t o 

the d i s p o s a l w e l l , the recover t h a t from d i s p o s a l moneys. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . And i f we look a t the Scott 

w e l l , your i n t e r e s t i s 0.295 percent, and you would have t o 

cut a check f o r $6800? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. And i f you do so, f o r about $60,000 you get 

d r i l l i n g i n f o r m a t i o n w i t h regards t o t h i s w e l l , y o u ' l l know 

what happens w i t h t h i s w e l l , and t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n would 

help you analyze and evaluate and put a market p r i c e on the 

r e s t of your deep gas p r o p e r t i e s i n the San Juan Basin? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Why don't you p a r t i c i p a t e ? 

A. Because we don't have s u f f i c i e n t i n f o r m a t i o n t o 

make a d e c i s i o n . 

Q. And have you attempted t o u t i l i z e p u b l i c 

i n f o r m a t i o n t o a s s i s t you i n making your own independent 

judgment about p a r t i c i p a t i o n ? 

A. Q u a l i f y " p u b l i c i n f o r m a t i o n " . 

Q. Yes, s i r . The O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n records, 

i n c l u d i n g , but not l i m i t e d t o , the 28 deep gas attempts. 

A. We have t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. And have you attempted t o use i t ? 

A. We've looked a t i t , but they're not r e l e v a n t t o 

t h i s . 

Q. Why not? 

A. Because t h i s i s a d i f f e r e n t area. 

Q. This i s an ab s o l u t e l y rank e x p l o r a t o r y w i l d c a t 

venture i n the deep gas? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: No f u r t h e r questions. 
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EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARROLL: 

Q. Mr. Moore, are you aware of any higher o f f e r s 

than have been made t o you — 

A. No. 

Q. — regarding your i n t e r e s t ? 

A. No. You mean by Burlington? 

Q. Yeah. 

A. No. 

Q. And you're a g e o l o g i s t — 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. — by profession? 

What do you consider j u s t the i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t 

you're aware of? I s t h i s high r i s k ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Oh, I never heard the expression regarding r i b b o n 

c l e r k s . W i l l you e x p l a i n t h a t , please? 

A. I n a TG&Y a ribbon c l e r k , you know, makes a dime 

an hour, whatever i t happens t o be. And t h a t ' s somewhat 

the way we f e e l we're t r e a t e d ; we don't make enough or are 

b i g enough t o be players i n the t h i n g . 

Okay? 

MR. CARROLL: Thanks. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Moore — 
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THE WITNESS: That might be an Oklahoma 

terminology. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. — w i t h regards t o your statements t h a t i t ' s 

i n d u s t r y norm t o provide t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n , have you been i n 

t h i s k i n d of s i t u a t i o n before where you've got a w i l d c a t 

such as t h i s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you — 

A. We've d r i l l e d w i l d c a t s . 

Q. Have you, i n f a c t , done seismic work i n an area 

and provided t h a t f r e e of charge — 

A. We've bought seismic work other people have done 

and provided i t , yes. 

Q. And you d i d provide t h a t f r e e of charge t o the 

other — 

A. When we show the prospect, yes, we do. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, I have no t h i n g f u r t h e r 

of t h i s witness. 

MR. GALLEGOS: We have nothing f u r t h e r . That 

c o n s t i t u t e s our witnesses, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, l e t ' s take a break 

here, a few minutes. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 9:41 a.m.) 
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(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 9:58 a.m.) 

EXAMINER CATANACH: A l l r i g h t , w e ' l l c a l l t he 

hearing back t o order a t t h i s time and t u r n i t over t o Mr. 

H a l l . 

MR. HALL: Thank you, Mr. Catanach. 

C a l l Mr. Norman now. 

NORMAN INMAN, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. For the record, s t a t e your name, please, s i r . 

A. Norman Inman. 

Q. Where do you l i v e and by whom are you employed 

and i n what capacity? 

A. I l i v e i n Houston, Texas, employed by T o t a l 

Minatome Corporation, and I'm an at t o r n e y . 

Q. I n your capacity as at t o r n e y f o r T o t a l Minatome 

Corporation, are you f a m i l i a r w i t h your company's 

understanding of the GLA-4 6 agreement? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And you have reviewed the GLA-46 agreement and 

are f a m i l i a r w i t h i t s terms? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Do you have a copy of GLA-4 6? 
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A. I do. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. K e l l a h i n , so t h a t I don't have 

t o i n t e r r u p t Mr. H a l l , would you note my c o n t i n u i n g 

o b j e c t i o n t o l i t i g a t i n g t h i s c o n t r a c t before the D i v i s i o n . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: We'll note t h a t c o n t i n u i n g 

o b j e c t i o n , Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) By the way, i n view of t h a t , Mr. 

Inman, l e t me ask you something q u i c k l y . I'm going t o 

repeat t o you a statement t h a t Mr. K e l l a h i n made i n h i s 

opening arguments, and I ' d l i k e t o see i f you agree w i t h 

i t . When we s t a r t e d t h i s case yesterday, Mr. K e l l a h i n s a i d 

the f o l l o w i n g : 1951 operating agreement i s not ambiguous. 

Do you agree w i t h t h a t ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Do you not agree w i t h t h a t ? 

A. I do not agree w i t h t h a t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look a t GLA-46, please, s i r . 

Let's review some of the terms of the GLA-46 f o r the 

Hearing Examiner so we a l l get a good understanding of i t s 

o p e r a t i o n . 

I f you would i d e n t i f y the f i r s t p o r t i o n of t h a t , 

t h a t i s the farmout agreement? 

A. That i s a farmout agreement — 

Q. What's the — 

A. — two pages. 
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Q. What's the operation of the farmout agreement 

here? 

A. The farmout agreement purports t o be an 

assignment of operating r i g h t s i n the p r o p e r t i e s t h a t are 

described on E x h i b i t A. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i f you would i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t B 

t o the GLA-4 6 agreement? 

A. That i s the operating agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look a t some of the terms of 

the o p e r a t i n g agreement. On page 1, paragraph 1, 

"Assignment of Operating Rights", what i s the o p e r a t i o n of 

t h a t p r o v i s i o n ? 

A. Excuse me? 

Q. What i s the operation of page 1, paragraph 1? 

A. Oh, i t t r a n s f e r s the operating r i g h t s t o San 

Juan. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And San Juan, j u s t so we are c l e a r , 

i s predecessor now t o B u r l i n g t o n Resources? 

A. Yes, I b e l i e v e i t ' s been an a f f i l i a t e of El Paso 

Na t u r a l Gas. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look a t page 3, paragraph 4b. 

I f you would look a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r p r o v i s i o n , what i s i t s 

operation? 

A. Well, i t provides f o r a minimum of f o u r Mesaverde 

w e l l s d u r i n g the f i r s t twelve months, but i f you complete 
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w e l l s above or below the Mesaverde they w i l l count as one 

f u l l w e l l f o r t h a t twelve-month p e r i o d . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, l e t ' s look a t paragraph 4b. I f 

the w e l l s are not d r i l l e d t o the Mesaverde or formations 

above or below, what happens? 

A. Well, they come back t o San Juan. 

Q. I see. 

Q. Now, l e t ' s r e f e r t o page 5, paragraph 4f t h e r e . 

Again, what i s the operation of t h a t p r o v i s i o n , " I n the 

event..."? 

A. I t says i f San Juan f a i l s t o d r i l l any of the 

w e l l s r e q u i r e d by the agreement, then they're not excused, 

there's — under other p r o v i s i o n s , t h a t San Juan w i l l 

r eassign or r e l i n q u i s h t o Brookhaven. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . To your knowledge, has San Juan or 

any of i t s successors ever reassigned the o p e r a t i n g r i g h t s 

t o T o t a l or i t s predecessors? 

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look a t page 7 now, paragraph 

5d. I s t h a t the so - c a l l e d c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t p r o v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And how does t h a t work, generally? 

A. Well, the agreement provides t h a t San Juan w i l l 

p r ovide the r i g and the equipment and the m a t e r i a l and the 

labor t o d r i l l these w e l l s . 
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Q. A l l right. 

A. And then i t defines also the net working 

i n t e r e s t , and 5d says t h a t out of the net working i n t e r e s t 

t h a t — the sale of the proceeds, t h a t San Juan would 

recoup those costs out of one-half of Brookhaven's net 

working i n t e r e s t . 

Q. And t h a t ' s the p r o v i s i o n t h a t you now understand 

B u r l i n g t o n t o f i n d o b j e c t i o n a b l e ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Turn the page now t o page 8, paragraph 5d2, t h a t 

same c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t p r o v i s i o n . That a p p l i e s t o w e l l s 

d r i l l e d a t greater or lesser depths than t h i s Mesaverde; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. I n your review of GLA-4 6, do you see any depth 

l i m i t a t i o n whatsoever? 

A. There i s no depth l i m i t a t i o n expressed or set 

f o r t h i n t h i s agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's r e f e r now t o E x h i b i t 3, BLM 

d e c i s i o n . 

A. A l l r i g h t , s i r . 

Q. Would you i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the record, please, 

s i r ? 

A. That i s a l e t t e r t o Brookhaven O i l Company and E l 

Paso Na t u r a l Gas, and i t ' s e n t i t l e d "Supplement t o 
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Operating Agreement of November 27, 1951 Approved". And 

the f i n a l paragraph, "The supplement i s hereby accepted and 

approved..." i s the crux of i t , and " . . . s h a l l continue i n 

f u l l f o r c e and e f f e c t . " 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I f you look a t the middle paragraph 

t h e r e , the l a s t sentence of t h a t paragraph, why don't you 

j u s t read t h a t ? I t s t a r t s , "Brookhaven acknowledges..." 

A. Okay. The l a s t sentence of the second paragraph? 

Q. Yes — I'm s o r r y , the t h i r d paragraph. 

A. "The purpose of t h i s . . . " 

Q. I'm s o r r y , I've m i s d i r e c t e d you. 

A. Okay. "Brookhaven acknowledges E l Paso's 

op e r a t i n g r i g h t s as provided by s a i d agreement i n and t o 

the above described land and designates El Paso as operator 

t h e r e o f , and El Paso assumes the o b l i g a t i o n s p r e s c r i b e d by 

the o p e r a t i n g agreement as t o the above land." 

Q. Now, i n E x h i b i t 3, r e c o g n i t i o n of the o p e r a t i o n 

of GLA-46 by BLM i n essence, co r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Do you see any reference t o a depth l i m i t a t i o n i n 

there? 

A. There i s no depth l i m i t a t i o n mentioned. 

Q. And i t ' s f u r t h e r evidence of El Paso's, now 

B u r l i n g t o n ' s , ownership of operating r i g h t s , a l l depths, 

c o r r e c t ? 
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A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Was E x h i b i t 3 contained i n T o t a l ' s lease f i l e s 

f o r the GLA-4 6? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Mr. Inman, i n your capacity as a t t o r n e y f o r 

T o t a l , from your review of the GLA-4 6 documents i n the 

company's f i l e s , based on your experience w i t h t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r agreement, would you e x p l a i n how B u r l i n g t o n , 

T o t a l and t h e i r predecessors have t r e a t e d the GLA-4 6 over 

the years when the operator proposed a w e l l i n any 

fo r m a t i o n , above or below the Mesaverde? 

A. Well, t h a t ' s t r u e , l i k e Mr. S t r i c k l e r t e s t i f i e d , 

f o r a long p e r i o d of time those matters were handled by 

supplements or amendments t o the operating agreement. I do 

not b e l i e v e i n the ten years t h a t T o t a l Minatome has been 

working under t h i s agreement t h a t t h e r e have been any 

supplements or amendments. 

Normal p r a c t i c e would be t o receive from Meridian 

or whoever an AFE f o r a proposed d r i l l i n g o p e r a t i o n , and we 

would, I guess, agree t o the cost, and we would w r i t e back 

t o Meridian and say, Yes, we would l i k e t o p a r t i c i p a t e on 

t h i s cost basis, pursuant t o t h i s 1951 agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s look a t E x h i b i t 4, i f you have 

t h a t before you there. I t ' s the September 27, 1962, l e t t e r 

from El Paso t o Brookhaven. Do you have t h a t i n f r o n t of 
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you.-' 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Does t h a t l e t t e r come from T o t a l ' s land f i l e s 

concerning the GLA-46? 

A. I t d i d . 

Q. And why don't you e x p l a i n t h i s document? What's 

t h i s a l l about? 

A. Mr. Thomas B. Scott, I guess, was Brookhaven O i l 

Company, and he references the November 26, 1951, 

agreement. And i t ' s addressed t o him from El Paso Na t u r a l 

Gas Company. 

"El Paso Natural Gas...would l i k e t o schedule the 

d r i l l i n g of a Dakota i n the east h a l f of Section 26, T 

31 North, Range 11 West, San Juan County, New Mexico. 

However, before we can proceed w i t h any Dakota 

development on acreage subject t o the captioned 

agreement, we w i l l have t o reach an agreement on the 

a l l o c a t i o n of costs as r e g u i r e d by Section 5-d (2) of 

Operating Agreement... 1951." 

Q. So when T o t a l and i t s predecessors received a 

s o l i c i t a t i o n l e t t e r l i k e t h i s from B u r l i n g t o n or i t s 

predecessors, how would i t respond? 

A. Well, i t would respond i n t h a t f a s h i o n . I t would 
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advise them t h a t they were going t o d r i l l a w e l l under t h a t 

agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. They were going t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n a w e l l under 

t h a t agreement. 

Q. They would negotiate the cost of the we l l ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And t h a t ' s about i t ? 

A. That's about i t . 

Q. Let's look a t E x h i b i t 5, please, s i r , i f you'd 

i d e n t i f y t h a t . 

A. That's the June 14, 1991, l e t t e r from Jean-Pierre 

Donnet, President and Chief Executive O f f i c e r of T o t a l 

Minatome Corporation, t o Meridian O i l , Farmington: 

"Gentlemen: Please be advised t h a t TOTAL Minatome 

Corporation e l e c t s t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the d r i l l i n g of the 

above captioned w e l l s under the terms of t h e . . . " 1951 

agreement between Brookhaven and San Juan. 

That was the Scott IR and the Scott 5R w e l l s and 

the A t l a n t i c Com "A" Number 7R, Brookhaven Com "B" Number 

3R, San Juan County, New Mexico. 

Q. So E x h i b i t 5, was i t contained w i t h i n T o t a l ' s 

land f i l e s p e r t a i n i n g t o — 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. — GLA-46? 
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Now, so at least through June, 1991, anyway, 

course of performance, course of d e a l i n g — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — between the p a r t i e s f o r commitment of T o t a l ' s 

i n t e r e s t i n the GLA-46 are r e a l l y q u i t e simple? 

A. I t h i n k i t i s . 

Can I ask you a question, Mr. Hall? Did you ask 

me e a r l y on i f I thought t h i s agreement was ambiguous or 

unambiguous? 

Q. I asked you i f you agreed w i t h Mr. K e l l a h i n ' s 

statement. Mr. K e l l a h i n s t a t e d t h a t the 1951 agreement was 

unambiguous. 

A. Yes, I agree t h a t i t ' s unambiguous. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. I misunderstood you. I thought you s a i d 

ambiguous. 

Q. Thank you f o r c l a r i f y i n g . 

A. I apologize. 

Q. Now, as a course of performance we've e s t a b l i s h e d 

between T o t a l and B u r l i n g t o n , t h e i r predecessors, w i t h 

regards t o p a r t i c i p a t i o n under GLA-4 6, has i t been c a r r i e d 

through t o Total's agreement t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n Scott and 

Marcotte w e l l s here? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what i s the present p o s i t i o n i n t e r p r e t a t i o n 
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of T o t a l w i t h respect t o i t s v o l u n t a r y commitment t o those 

two wells? I n other words, do you b e l i e v e t h a t your 

i n t e r e s t s are committed? 

A. Yes, we bel i e v e t h a t we have agreed t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n those two w e l l s . 

MR. HALL: That concludes my d i r e c t of t h i s 

witness. 

I would move the admission of E x h i b i t s 3, 4 and 

5. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: E x h i b i t s 3, 4 and 5 w i l l be 

admitted as evidence. 

Mr. K e l l a h i n , do you have any questions? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm going t o save my guestions f o r 

the D i s t r i c t Court l i t i g a t i o n , Mr. Examiner. 

MR. CARROLL: I have no questions. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I have no questions of the 

witness. He may be excused. 

DEBORAH GILCHRIST, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

her oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. For the record s t a t e your name, please. 

A. My name i s Deborah G i l c h r i s t . 

Q. Ms. G i l c h r i s t , where do you l i v e , by whom are you 
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employed and i n what capacity? 

A. I l i v e i n Houston, Texas. I'm employed by T o t a l 

Minatome Corporation. I hold two p o s i t i o n s . I'm manager 

of land a d m i n i s t r a t i o n , and I'm also the New Mexico-west 

Texas landman. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before 

the New Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n and had your 

c r e d e n t i a l s accepted as a matter of record? 

A. No, I have not. 

Q. Why don't you give the Hearing Examiner a b r i e f 

summary of your educational background and work experience? 

A. Okay. I have some j u n i o r c o l l e g e experience and 

numerous o i l and gas seminars. I have 22 years land, land 

a d m i n i s t r a t i o n , a c q u i s i t i o n , divestment experience a t 

var i o u s o i l companies. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Have you Texas R a i l r o a d Commission 

pre v i o u s l y ? 

A. No, I have a t the North Dakota. 

MR. HALL: North Dakota, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Mr. Examiner, we would tender Ms. G i l c h r i s t as an 

expert petroleum landman. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Any obj e c t i o n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Ms. G i l c h r i s t i s so 

q u a l i f i e d . 
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Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Ms. G i l c h r i s t , you're f a m i l i a r 

w i t h B u r l i n g t o n ' s proposed w e l l s i n t h i s case and t h e i r 

A p p l i c a t i o n s , correct? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And you're also f a m i l i a r w i t h T o t a l ' s i n t e r e s t i n 

the land, subject t o the two w e l l - p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Have you been responsible f o r handling the 

contacts from B u r l i n g t o n s o l i c i t i n g T o t a l ' s v o l u n t a r y 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n f o r these two wells? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And who have you communicated w i t h , p r i m a r i l y ? 

A. James S t r i c k l e r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Ms. G i l c h r i s t , has T o t a l agreed t o 

commit i t s i n t e r e s t i n the subject lands t o the Scott and 

Marcotte wells? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I f you would, please, l e t ' s look a t E x h i b i t s 6 

and 7. Would you i d e n t i f y those f o r the record, please? 

A. Yes, t h i s i s my l e t t e r t o B u r l i n g t o n e l e c t i n g t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l f o r — subject t o the terms of the 

1951 farmout and operating agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s i d e n t i f y both of those. E x h i b i t 

6 i s your commitment l e t t e r f o r the Marcotte Number 2? 

A. Marcotte, dated May 2 3rd, and the Scott 24, dated 
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May 3 0th. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And attached t o those, t o each of 

those, are what? 

A. This i s t h e i r p a r t i c i p a t i o n l e t t e r t h a t they send 

w i t h t h e i r AFEs. And as i n the case of these two w e l l s , 

l i k e we have i n the past w i t h a l l the other w e l l s , we 

s t r i k e out language t o pay i t s p r o p o r t i o n a t e , we do not 

execute the AFE, and we agree t o p a r t i c i p a t e under the 

terms of the 1951 agreement. 

Q. And t h a t ' s r e f l e c t e d on your execution page, page 

2 of the attached — 

A. Yes, page 2 of the l e t t e r s . 

Q. — l e t t e r s ? 

And based on your understanding and your review 

of GLA-46 f i l e s and your past experience d e a l i n g w i t h the 

agreement, i s t h i s t y p i c a l of the way t h a t T o t a l has 

committed t o d r i l l wells? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And t h a t ' s i n c l u s i v e of w e l l s above and below the 

Mesaverde formation? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I f you would, please, Ms. G i l c h r i s t , would you 

provide us w i t h an overview of the e f f o r t s of B u r l i n g t o n t o 

o b t a i n T o t a l ' s v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r t o the two wells? 

A. Yes, i n J u l y , 1996, we received an u n s o l i c i t e d 
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o f f e r of v t e n d o l l a r s an acre on our undeveloped acreage 

below the producing formations. I d i d not respond t o t h a t 

o f f e r . I t was extremely low, and i t ' s the p r a c t i c e t h a t we 

don't s e l l undeveloped acreage. 

John Zendt c a l l e d me, and we discussed a l i t t l e 

b i t t h a t we weren't i n t e r e s t e d i n the o f f e r , and t h a t was 

the l a s t I heard of anything u n t i l I received a proposal i n 

February of 1997 from Mr. S t r i c k l e r which set out a farmout 

proposal, s e l l our i n t e r e s t , farmout or execute a new 

op e r a t i n g agreement, Model 1989-610 form. 

From there I c a l l e d Mr. S t r i c k l e r . We 

discussed — numerous times, we've had many, many 

conversations. 

At t h a t p a r t i c u l a r time I t o l d him we f e l t l i k e 

the acreage was subject t o the 1951 agreement, the farmout 

terms were unacceptable, the — We do not farm out blanket 

2200 acres. We would — t h a t he needed t o r e v i s e h i s 

proposals t o j u s t cover the sections t h a t he was proposing 

the w e l l i n . 

A f t e r t h a t , then, we d i d have some a d d i t i o n a l 

conversation. He c a l l e d and asked i f we would — t h a t — 

informed me — we got n o t i c e of the 64 0 spacing, and Mr. 

S t r i c k l e r and I discussed whether T o t a l Minatome would 

support the 640 spacing. 

I contacted my g e o l o g i s t , and the f a c t t h a t we 
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didn't have enough geology to support or oppose — We did 

n o t h i n g i n t h a t case. 

The g e o l o g i s t on the February proposal requested 

me t o t r y and o b t a i n f o r Mr. S t r i c k l e r , as i s customary 

w i t h any e x p l o r a t o r y proposed w e l l , t o get some seismic 

geology, anything t h a t we could. 

A f t e r many conversations d u r i n g the month of 

March, then we d i d receive a 4-1 proposal which d i d a l l o w 

T o t a l Minatome t o review the geology, only i f we amended 

the GLA-46 as t o a l l depths, which was unacceptable a t t h a t 

time. 

Q. Let me ask you about t h a t p a r t i c u l a r matter. 

I ' l l p rovide you w i t h what's been marked as E x h i b i t 9. 

A. Right. 

Q. Would you i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the record, please? 

A. E x h i b i t 9 i s the A p r i l 1st proposal whereby T o t a l 

Minatome would be allowed t o see the 2-D and 3-D seismic by 

amending the November 27, 1951, operating agreement and 

t h a t they would set out a mutually agreeable time t o show 

us the Arch Rock p r o j e c t . 

Q. So B u r l i n g t o n d i d acknowledge the a p p l i c a b i l i t y 

of GLA-4 6 t o the deep r i g h t s ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. I mean, t h a t ' s — That's what t h i s was 

saying t o us. 

The second page also t a l k s about T o t a l agreeing 
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t o amend the operating agreement by d e l e t i n g paragraphs 5 

through 14 on the accounting procedure and the August 8th 

amendment, gas balancing agreement, and r e p l a c i n g i t w i t h 

the new oper a t i n g agreement w i t h the 4 00-percent nonconsent 

p e n a l t y , $25,000 l i m i t e d expenditure, 1984 COPAS, 

p r e f e r e n t i a l r i g h t s t r i c k e n , gas balancing agreement, and 

e f f e c t i v e date A p r i l 1. 

I n my communications w i t h Mr. S t r i c k l e r , I t o l d 

him t h a t we would not — t h i s was not acceptable, we would 

not be amending t h a t agreement — 

Q. What d i d you f i n d — 

A. — and t h a t I understood h i s p o s i t i o n . 

Q. I understand. What d i d you f i n d o b j e c t i o n a b l e t o 

t h e i r proposal, of a l l those terms you discussed? 

A. P r i m a r i l y t h a t i t covered a l l of our acreage i n 

t h a t p a r t i c u l a r area, being 22 00 acres, and the other was 

the 400-percent nonconsent penalty. We don't see consent 

p e n a l t i e s t h a t high anywhere except o f f s h o r e . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Has T o t a l p a r t i c i p a t e d i n some deep 

w i l d c a t w e l l s elsewhere, where you've been asked t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e ? 

A. Yes, where j u s t — We operate and are p a r t n e r s i n 

deep gas e x p l o r a t o r y h i g h - r i s k w e l l s i n south Louisiana, 

and they're nonconsent p r o v i s i o n s from between 3 00, 3 50. 

Q. I see. So as f a r as you're aware o f , 4 00 percent 
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i s not i n d u s t r y custom and p r a c t i c e i n the San Juan Basin? 

A. No, off s h o r e only, i s the only place we've seen 

t h a t . And we do own p r o p e r t i e s throughout many 

geographical areas. 

A f t e r the 4-1 l e t t e r and other conversations I 

had w i t h Mr. S t r i c k l e r whereby he informed me t h a t i f I 

d i d n ' t p a r t i c i p a t e under a new operating agreement or farm 

out, t h a t we were j u s t h o l d i n g out because we were 

s e l l i n g — we were n e g o t i a t i n g w i t h B u r l i n g t o n t o s e l l a l l 

of our New Mexico p r o p e r t i e s . 

That came as a s u r p r i s e t o me. I'm on the 

divestment team, and I was not aware of any n e g o t i a t i o n s . 

I checked w i t h my v i c e p r e s i d e n t of 

ac q u i s i t i o n s / d i v e s t m e n t , and he informed me t h a t we were i n 

no n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h B u r l i n g t o n t o s e l l out our San Juan 

Basin p r o p e r t i e s . 

Q. So t h a t was not t r u e . You're not s e l l i n g your 

New Mexico i n t e r e s t s ? 

A. No, no. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. Another conversation I had w i t h Mr. S t r i c k l e r , he 

i n d i c a t e d t o me t h a t we should p a r t i c i p a t e because we had 

deep pockets. 

And another conversation I had w i t h Mr. 

S t r i c k l e r , he i n d i c a t e d t o me t h a t we should p a r t i c i p a t e or 
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t h i s would h u r t f u t u r e deals t h a t B u r l i n g t o n and T o t a l 

Minatome may have i n the Gulf of Mexico. 

Q. Really? Let's look at E x h i b i t Number 8. Do you 

have t h a t i n f r o n t of you there? I t ' s your May 2 2nd l e t t e r 

from B u r l i n g t o n . 

A. Right here. Yes, I have i t . 

Q. Would you e x p l a i n t h a t ? What was the t h r u s t of 

t h a t l e t t e r ? 

A. This i s where I t o l d him v e r b a l l y t h a t our 

p o s i t i o n was, we were going t o be p a r t i c i p a t i n g under the 

terms of the GLA-4 6. 

And i n h i s response he sent t h i s l e t t e r 

r e q u e s t i n g us t o e i t h e r p a r t i c i p a t e under t h e i r proposed 

JOA submitted 4-1 or t o farm out our i n t e r e s t i n the Arch 

Rock prospect, which i s , i n our case, 2 2 00 acres, set out 

i n E x h i b i t A, and then goes f u r t h e r t o t a l k about 

h i s t o r i c a l l y how the agreement had been amended 3 0 — and 

i t ' s a c t u a l l y amended and supplemented — 3 0-plus times. 

Q. Let me ask you, d i d you understand as a r e s u l t of 

the May 2 2nd l e t t e r from Mr. S t r i c k l e r t h a t i t was 

Bu r l i n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n now t h a t the GLA-4 6 was i n a p p l i c a b l e 

t o the deep r i g h t s a t a l l ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . P r i o r t o t h a t our conversation 

had been t h a t i t was an o l d agreement, i t was d i f f i c u l t t o 

operate under, t h i n g s of t h a t nature. 
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I did t e l l him that I could not guarantee him, 

but I would t r y t o have my management amend the GLA-4 6 as 

t o the gas-balancing accounting procedures, the consent-to-

assign p r o v i s i o n , insurance, t h i n g s of — l i m i t e d 

expenditures, t h i n g s of t h a t nature t h a t we could p o s s i b l y 

get more c u r r e n t and up t o date. 

I made no guarantees. I d i d , i n f a c t , send a 

memo t o every manager responsible f o r those areas, 

r e q u e s t i n g t h a t they review the proposal from B u r l i n g t o n , 

and could we po s s i b l y amend the GLA-4 6 as t o the deep Penn 

only, f o r these p a r t i c u l a r issues i n the o p e r a t i n g 

agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . By the way, l e t me ask you about t h i s 

consent-to-assign p r o v i s i o n . What i s t h a t ? 

A. There i s a consent-to-assign p r o v i s i o n i n the 

GLA-4 6, and B u r l i n g t o n — numerous times Mr. S t r i c k l e r ' s 

correspondence requested t h a t we amend the consent-to-

assign t o everyone except Conoco. They wanted t o amend 

t h a t . 

And I t o l d him i t wasn't necessary t o amend the 

p r o v i s i o n , t h a t we never unreasonably w i t h h o l d consent-to-

assign t o anybody f o r — t h a t I've ever been aware o f . 

Q. Refer you back t o E x h i b i t 8, the May 22nd l e t t e r . 

A. Yes. 

Q. Look a t the f i f t h paragraph t h e r e . 
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A. Yes. 

Q. The f i r s t sentence, there's some comment about 

you b r i n g i n g down the p r o j e c t . 

A. Yes, i t says, " B u r l i n g t o n does not agree w i t h 

your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the agreement which allows you t o be 

c a r r i e d or e f f e c t i v e l y b r i n g down the p r o j e c t on the 

subj e c t w e l l . " 

Q. What was your understanding of t h a t — 

A. I asked Mr. S t r i c k l e r , you know, d i d he f e e l l i k e 

T o t a l Minatome's four percent was going t o b r i n g down t h i s 

w e l l , and he sa i d — t o l d me t h a t i t may not be d r i l l e d . 

And t h i s was i n May — on May 22nd. 

I t o l d him t h a t I found t h a t very hard t o b e l i e v e 

since I was aware — I was i n communication w i t h Amoco's 

landman, and I was aware t h a t he had j u s t entered i n t o a 

farmout o b t a i n i n g t h e i r 68 percent i n t h i s w e l l and t h a t my 

fo u r percent was not going t o stop the d r i l l i n g of t h i s 

w e l l . 

Q. Was i t always represented t o you t h a t the w e l l 

would be d r i l l e d on a 640-acre basis? 

A. O r i g i n a l l y we c a l c u l a t e d — On the f i r s t proposal 

i n February, we c a l c u l a t e d our i n t e r e s t on a 160. And i t 

was l a t e r when received n o t i c e of the 64 0 spacing t h a t we 

then went i n and d i d the r e c a l c u l a t i o n s based on 64 0, and, 

i n f a c t , t h a t was the i n t e r e s t t h a t we were AFE'd on. 
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Q. Right. 

A. A f t e r the May 22nd l e t t e r — And d u r i n g t h i s time 

we received AFEs f o r the Marcotte and the Scott 24, which 

we d i d , as per the e x h i b i t s we're already discussed about, 

e l e c t t o p a r t i c i p a t e under the terms of the agreement. 

Then I — B u r l i n g t o n was attem p t i n g — Mr. 

S t r i c k l e r was attempting t o communicate w i t h our upper 

management, the v i c e president of e x p l o r a t i o n , v i c e 

p r e s i d e n t of land. Bobby Kennedy w i t h B u r l i n g t o n — I 

b e l i e v e he's a land manager — had a discus s i o n w i t h K i r b y 

Berry, and — which p r e c i p i t a t e d the June 16th l e t t e r , 

which r e v i s e d the terms, came i n w i t h more f a v o r a b l e 

farmout terms as t o the before-payout r e t a i n e d o v e r r i d e and 

the back-in, however s t i l l contained the 4 00 nonconsent on 

the JOA and t h i n g s of t h a t nature. 

Q. Was t h a t done w i t h your knowledge? 

A. I knew they had a conversation, but I d i d n ' t — I 

was carbon-copied on the l e t t e r , I b e l i e v e . 

Q. I see. 

A. I d i d n ' t know t h a t a l e t t e r was going t o be 

forthcoming. 

Now, James and I had discussed several times, 

You've got t o give me more favorable terms, these are 

unacceptable. And they d i d t r y — We were not going t o 

farm out 2 2 00 acres. And i n the June 16th, the acreage was 
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reduced i n h a l f t o approximately 1200 acres, and the 

o v e r r i d e was increased, and so was the back-in. 

At t h a t time I prepared a memo t o my upper 

management g i v i n g them the previous terms and the new 

terms, a d v i s i n g them, of course, we could s t i l l — we s t i l l 

t ake the p o s i t i o n we are p a r t i c i p a t i n g under t h a t 1951 

agreement, d i d we want t o t a l k ? 

At the very — day or two l a t e r , I received 

n o t i c e t h a t we were being force-pooled and t h a t T o t a l 

Minatome was shown as not p a r t i c i p a t i n g , and a t t h a t time 

we went no f u r t h e r i n house w i t h the June 16th proposal. 

Q. So the p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n had a k i l l i n g e f f e c t 

on n e g o t i a t i o n s ? 

A. Absolutely, a b s o l u t e l y . I c a l l e d Mr. S t r i c k l e r 

because I ' d had a conversation w i t h him on the 19th, and he 

d i d not t e l l me he was fo r c e - p o o l i n g us and showing us as 

not p a r t i c i p a t i n g . I c a l l e d him and l e t him know t h a t I 

was not very happy about t h a t and t h a t n e g o t i a t i o n s a t t h i s 

time were now a t a s t a n d s t i l l . 

Q. How many AFEs, w e l l proposals, do you rec e i v e a 

year? 

A. I n San Juan Basin? 

Q. Yes. 

A. We g e n e r a l l y get between 20, 25 AFEs f o r a l l 

types of workovers, recompletions, f a c i l i t i e s , new d r i l l s . 
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Q. And what do you u s u a l l y do w i t h those? Do you 

consent t o those? 

A. We have never nonconsented any op e r a t i o n i n the 

San Juan Basin since T o t a l Minatome Corporation has owned 

these p r o p e r t i e s . 

Q. And i n approximately how many w e l l s does T o t a l 

have an i n t e r e s t i n , i n New Mexico? 

A. We have r o y a l t y , o v e r r i d e and working i n t e r e s t s 

i n approximately 1800 w e l l s i n the San Juan Basin. 

Q. You are f a m i l i a r w i t h the i n d u s t r y customs and 

p r a c t i c e s i n New Mexico and the San Juan Basin? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Ms. G i l c h r i s t , based on your experience as a 

p r o f e s s i o n a l landman, do you be l i e v e t h a t B u r l i n g t o n has 

sought T o t a l ' s v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the two w e l l s i n 

a g o o d - f a i t h manner? 

A. No, I do not. 

Q. And why not? 

A. I'm not accustomed t o de a l i n g w i t h landmen t h a t 

do t h r e a t e n you w i t h Gulf of Mexico, you're t r y i n g t o get 

too much f o r your p r o p e r t i e s and we're n e g o t i a t i n g t o buy 

a l l your p r o p e r t i e s i n San Juan Basin. You're not a good 

p a r t n e r ; I was t o l d t h a t several times. I've never had 

anybody t e l l me t h a t I should p a r t i c i p a t e s t r i c t l y because 

I have deep pockets. Those are j u s t t h i n g s t h a t don't 
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normally occur. 

Q. Did you ever have any discussions w i t h Mr. 

S t r i c k l e r about why they were rushing t o d r i l l the 

Marcotte, what the hurry was a l l about? 

A. He made reference t o a d r i l l i n g window as t o some 

weather c o n d i t i o n s . And since we are not an operator i n 

New Mexico, we're nonoperator, I couldn't d i s p u t e t h a t a t 

the time. And I f i g u r e d he knew what he was t a l k i n g about, 

since they are one of the major operators i n t h i s s t a t e . 

Q. Was i t your impression from what Mr. S t r i c k l e r 

had t o l d you t h a t the BLM had imposed some s o r t of time 

l i m i t a t i o n — 

A. Some type of d r i l l i n g — BLM d r i l l i n g window t h a t 

had something t o do w i t h weather c o n d i t i o n s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. I would l i k e t o add t h a t we were informed when 

the w e l l was spud from Mr. H a l l . I c a l l e d Mr. S t r i c k l e r 

and asked f o r d r i l l i n g r e p o r t s . I was denied d r i l l i n g 

r e p o r t s because I was t o l d they were not acknowledging us 

as p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n the w e l l . 

Q. Let's look a t what's been marked a t T o t a l E x h i b i t 

11, a Notice of Staking from the BLM w e l l f i l e s from the 

Farmington o f f i c e . Did you review t h a t ? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. This i s , i n essence, the v e r s i o n of the APD 
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application Burlington has in with BLM. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I n t h a t f o u r t h page of t h a t document, attachment, 

i t ' s c a l l e d "BLM Conditions of Approval". Do you see t h a t 

there? 

A. On the f o u r t h page? Oh, c o n d i t i o n s . Okay, here 

i t i s . 

Q. Did you review those conditions? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. And d i d you see anywhere i n t h e r e or anywhere 

else i n t h i s document any s o r t of time l i m i t a t i o n based on 

weather or any other reason? 

A. No. 

Q. These APDs BLM has used are good f o r a year, 

aren't they? 

A. That's what I am t o l d , yes. 

Q. And extensions are e a s i l y had? 

A. That's what I'm also t o l d . 

Q. Ms. G i l c h r i s t , the other GLA-4 6 i n t e r e s t owners 

have been discussed here the past two days. Are you 

somewhat f a m i l i a r w i t h them? 

A. Yes, we r e f e r t o them as the White and Steele 

group. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I t h i n k someone e a r l i e r c a l l e d them 

widows or orphans, something l i k e t h a t . Let me ask you, do 
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you know i f these i n d i v i d u a l s are i n d u s t r y types? Are they 

operators? 

A. No, the White and Steele group are p r i m a r i l y 

e l d e r l y i n d i v i d u a l s , w i t h the exception of the Umbachs have 

— and Mr. Steele who i s e l d e r l y but i s an a t t o r n e y . None 

of them have any o i l and gas experience, and f o r many years 

a t Lear Petroleum and then from 1986 t o 1990 we were t h e i r 

agent a c t i n g on t h e i r behalf, and so I have spoke w i t h 

every one of those i n d i v i d u a l s and know them p r e t t y w e l l . 

MR. HALL: A l l r i g h t . That concludes my d i r e c t 

of Ms. G i l c h r i s t . 

We would move the admissions of E x h i b i t s 6, 7, 8, 

9 and 11, and I ' d ask the Examiner t o take a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

n o t i c e of the BLM's Notice of Staking APD document we've 

introduced as 11. I t ' s an o f f i c i a l document. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Catanach, I have not v e r i f i e d 

the s t a k i n g document. I w i l l r e l y on Mr. H a l l ' s a s s e r t i o n 

t h a t i t ' s an accurate d u p l i c a t i o n . I have no o b j e c t i o n t o 

the i n t r o d u c t i o n of h i s e x h i b i t s . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: E x h i b i t s 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 and 

11 and the n o t i c e of st a k i n g — 

MR. HALL: That's 11. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: That's 11? 

MR. HALL: Yes. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: — w i l l be admitted as 
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evidence. 

Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I have no questions f o r t h i s 

witness Mr. Examiner. 

MR. HALL: That concludes our case, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I've got a couple questions. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Ms. G i l c h r i s t , under — As I understand i t , the 

sequence of events, you ele c t e d t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n t he 

d r i l l i n g of the w e l l s under the terms of the GLA-4 6 

agreement? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Was i t afterwards t h a t you entered i n t o f u r t h e r 

n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h Burlington? 

A. A f t e r Bobby Kennedy t a l k e d t o our v i c e p r e s i d e n t , 

he asked t h a t — B u r l i n g t o n asked, could they, you know, 

r e v i s e the terms of the farmout proposal? And our v i c e 

p r e s i d e n t s a i d yes, and t h a t ' s what p r e c i p i t a t e d the June 

16th, 1997 — 

Q. Okay, so you were w i l l i n g t o change some of the 

terms of the operating agreement? 

A. Yes, I a c t u a l l y prepared memos, as I t e s t i f i e d a 

w h i l e ago, t o amend c e r t a i n p o r t i o n s of i t , not as t o the 

c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t , but w i t h o u t the geology, our senior 
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geologist, Brad Watts, could not make a determination to 

farm out at that time without seeing any geology, which is 

customary. 

But on the 4-1-97 l e t t e r , we were o f f e r e d t o see 

the geology i f we amended the GLA-4 6 agreement as t o a l l 

depths, and t h a t was unacceptable t o my management. 

Q. Why d i d you cease n e g o t i a t i o n s when you got the 

news of the compulsory p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Because i n our p o s i t i o n , we were p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n 

the w e l l . That i s our p o s i t i o n . And we were shown as not 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g f o r t h i s f o r c e - p o o l i n g hearing. 

Q. So you chose j u s t t o di s c o n t i n u e n e g o t i a t i o n s ? 

A. On June 2 3rd. We then contacted Mr. H a l l and 

decided we needed some l e g a l r e p r e s e n t a t i o n f o r t h i s 

hearing. 

Q. You t e s t i f i e d something t o the e f f e c t about a 

t h r e a t t h a t Mr. S t r i c k l e r — something about — I'm s o r r y , 

could you go i n t o t h a t ? 

A. The f i r s t t h r e a t i n a conversation was t h a t i f we 

d i d not farm out, amend the agreement or p a r t i c i p a t e under 

the new agreement, t h i s would impact the n e g o t i a t i o n s . 

Someone a t h i s o f f i c e had t a l k e d t o corporate — I don't 

know who t h a t would be — and t h a t t h i s was — we were j u s t 

doing t h i s t o get more money f o r a deal we were working on 

t o s e l l a l l our San Juan Basin p r o p e r t i e s t o B u r l i n g t o n . 
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As I stated, I'm on the divestment team, and I 

was unaware of any n e g o t i a t i o n s . So I asked — the case 

may be — upper management i s o f t e n i n discussions before 

i t gets down t o my l e v e l . I contacted our v i c e p r e s i d e n t 

of a c q u i s i t i o n s / d i v e s t m e n t , and he was i n no n e g o t i a t i o n s 

w i t h B u r l i n g t o n t o s e l l our San Juan Basin. 

The second t h r e a t came when i f I d i d not 

p a r t i c i p a t e under the new JOA, amend the agreement or farm 

out, t h a t t h i s was going t o impact any dealings we had w i t h 

B u r l i n g t o n i n the f u t u r e i n the Gulf of Mexico. 

Q. Explain t o me, under the terms of the GLA-46, by 

e l e c t i n g t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l under the terms of t h a t 

agreement, what do you do at t h i s p o int? I f you were going 

t o p a r t i c i p a t e and B u r l i n g t o n agreed t h a t you were su b j e c t 

t o t h a t — 

A. We would do — 

Q. — would you not pay your share of w e l l costs? 

A. We would do l i k e we have done i n a l l the w e l l s 

t h a t we have p a r t i c i p a t e d i n — 

Q. Which i s what? 

A. — under the GLA-46. 

Q. Which i s what? 

A. The w e l l i s d r i l l e d , and then we re c e i v e — 

Q. Just — 

A. And we pay no cost. 
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Q. You pay no w e l l costs? 

A. Down t o the w e l l being d r i l l e d . A f t e r the w e l l 

i s completed and a producer, we receive a D i v i s i o n order 

f o r h a l f our revenue, and then — which c a l l s f o r being 

recouped out of one-half of production, and we are then 

b i l l e d f o r our working i n t e r e s t a t the f u l l i n t e r e s t . 

Upon payout of those d r i l l i n g costs, we re c e i v e 

another D i v i s i o n order from B u r l i n g t o n , and our net revenue 

i s then increased t o the f u l l amount, and then — and 

dur i n g t h a t time we are paying our cost on completions, and 

ther e are f a c i l i t i e s and there — they might even have done 

a workover and we are paying our cost. I t i s j u s t the 

d r i l l i n g , j u s t the d r i l l i n g cost. 

MR. CARROLL: D r i l l i n g and completing? 

THE WITNESS: Not completing. 

Q. (By Examiner Catanach) So you put up no money, 

and i f the w e l l i s completed as a producer, you s t a r t 

r e a l i z i n g — 

A. We get paid h a l f our revenue, and then they 

recoup out of one-half of our revenue. 

Q. So you're not assessed any r i s k p e n a l t y 

whatsoever? 

A. That would be c o r r e c t . And i f i t ' s a dry hole, 

then we had no r i s k a t t h a t time. And t h a t ' s the way we 

have p a r t i c i p a t e d and our p r e d e c e s s o r s - i n - t i t l e have 
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p a r t i c i p a t e d i n a l l w e l l s AFE1d. 

Q. Do you see any agreements l i k e t h a t anymore? 

A. No. I understand from the landman i n Amoco t h a t 

t h e y ' r e s ubject t o more than one l i k e the GLA-46, t h a t they 

have some other agreements t h a t are o l d . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I have no f u r t h e r questions 

of t h i s witness. You may be excused. 

MR. GALLEGOS: I have no questions. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. H a l l , does t h a t — 

MR. HALL: That concludes our case, Mr. Catanach. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I be l i e v e we have — Mr. 

K e l l a h i n , i s your l a s t witness here? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , he i s . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, do you want t o so t h a t 

a t t h i s time? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Let's do i t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I f you please. We'll c a l l Mr. 

Neal Edwards. 

Mr. C a r r o l l , w e ' l l need t o have Mr. Edwards 

sworn. 

(Thereupon, the witness was sworn.) 

MR. KELLAHIN: Before I begin my examination of 

Mr. Edwards, Mr. Catanach, I have submitted t o you 

Bu r l i n g t o n ' s E x h i b i t 8. This was copied by me from the OCD 

w e l l f i l e s downstairs. I t i s a re p r o d u c t i o n of the 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

308 

documents on f i l e f o r the Marcotte w e l l . 

Y o u ' l l note the c o n f i d e n t i a l i t y stamp. 

B u r l i n g t o n waives the c o n f i d e n t i a l i t y i n s o f a r as the 

i n f o r m a t i o n you're about t o see on these pages. They 

maintain a c o n f i d e n t i a l i t y of APDs w i t h regards t o some of 

the i n f o r m a t i o n contained i n the BLM f i l e s . I've excluded 

t h a t from the next e x h i b i t . E x h i b i t 8 i s what's i n the OCD 

f i l e s . 

E x h i b i t 9 i s p a r t of the BLM f i l e . I t ' s the BLM 

l e t t e r of June 5th, 1997. I t again i s f o l l o w e d by an 

approved APD, f i r s t page, which i s i d e n t i c a l t o the OCD 

f i l e , and then there's a C-102 attached t o t h a t . We're 

waiving the c o n f i d e n t i a l i t y as t o those t h r e e pages and 

s t i l l m a i n t a i n i n g the c o n f i d e n t i a l i t y of the r e s t of the 

f i l i n g made w i t h the BLM. 

The purpose of t h i s i s t o demonstrate the s t a k i n g 

and the surveying t h a t Mr. Edwards d i d . He i s the 

p r o f e s s i o n a l land surveyor t h a t ' s a t t e s t e d t o the C-102. 

My purpose i s t o have a discussion w i t h him about the 

l o c a t i o n of the w e l l . 

We would move, w i t h your permission, the 

i n t r o d u c t i o n of E x h i b i t s 8 and 9. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Can we have a few moments t o 

d i g e s t these? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Yes. 
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MR. HALL: We'd appreciate that. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Yeah, l e t ' s take a f i v e -

minute break here. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 10:46 a.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 10:51 a.m.) 

MR. KELLAHIN: We are pending the i n t r o d u c t i o n of 

my two e x h i b i t s . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I s there any o b j e c t i o n t o 

t h a t , Mr. Gallegos? 

MR. GALLEGOS: We would ask you w i t h h o l d r u l i n g 

u n t i l we can determine whether Mr. Edwards can q u a l i f y 

these documents. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Let's do t h a t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, i t ' s not my 

i n t e n t i o n t o have Mr. Edwards q u a l i f y the documents. 

They've been submitted t o you as p u b l i c documents on f i l e 

w i t h the BLM and the OCD. I f i t ' s necessary, I ' l l get a 

c e r t i f i c a t e from the BLM and the OCD as t o t h e i r 

a u t h e n t i c i t y , and I've proposed t h e i r admission i n t h a t 

f a s h i o n . 

MR. GALLEGOS: We're not — We don't have any 

o b j e c t i o n t o a u t h e n t i c i t y , but we've got t o have some 

relevancy and m a t e r i a l i t y e s t a b l i s h e d by somebody, so why 

doesn't the witness t e s t i f y and — I'm not going t o o b j e c t 

t o him t e s t i f y i n g t o contents i f he needs t o use i t i n some 
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doesn't mean that there's a foundation for 

MR. KELLAHIN: The relevance, Mr. Examiner, i s , 

t h i s i s the APD f o r the Marcotte Number 2 and t h e i r C-102s, 

MR. GALLEGOS: Well, t h a t appears t o be the case 

w i t h 8. Nine i s a l e t t e r addressed t o B u r l i n g t o n from 

somebody a t BLK. I don't t h i n k there's anything y e t t h a t 

— i n the way c f foundation f o r t h a t . 

MR. CARROLL: Well, w e ' l l defer — 

MR. GALLEGOS: I don't have any — 

MR. CARROLL: We'll defer r u l i n g t i l l a f t e r the 

testimony. 

MR. GjALLEGOS: Okay. 

NEAL EDWARDS. 

the witness herjein, a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Edwards, s i r , would you please s t a t e your 

name and occupation? 

A. My name i s Neal Edwards and I'm a r e g i s t e r e d land 

surveyor i n the State of New Mexico. 

Q. Where do you re s i d e , s i r ? 

A. I have an o f f i c e i n Farmington, New Mexico, and I 

l i v e i n Durango, Colorado. 
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Q. Do you p r i m a r i l y p r a c t i c e your p r o f e s s i o n i n the 

San Juan Basin? 

A. Yes --

Q. And i s — 

A. — j u s t about a l l my work i s i n the San Juan 

Basin. 

Q. And i s a p o r t i o n of your work devoted t o s t a k i n g 

w e l l s f o r Burlington? 

A. Yes, I staked several w e l l s f o r B u r l i n g t o n . 

Q. Were you responsible f o r s t a k i n g the Marcotte 

w e l l i n Section 8? 

A. Yes, I staked the Marcotte Number 2. 

Q. As p a r t of t h a t s e rvice you provide t o 

B u r l i n g t o n , have you over the course of your p r o f e s s i o n 

become experienced i n the s t a k i n g and w e l l - l o c a t i o n 

requirements of the Bureau of Land Management? 

A. Yes, I work r e a l close w i t h the agencies i n the 

San Juan Basin. 

Q. I n a d d i t i o n , f o r purposes of the Marcotte w e l l , 

a t the time you staked t h i s w e l l , were you f a m i l i a r w i t h 

the a p p l i c a b l e w e l l setback requirements under the then-

e x i s t i n g 160-acre spacing? 

A. Yeah, we were lo o k i n g f o r a 160 spacing when t h i s 

f i r s t come out, and t o keep i n mind the p o s s i b i l i t y of a 

640-acre spacing. 
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Q. At the time you staked t h i s w e l l , you knew of the 

p o s s i b i l i t y of 640-acre spacing? 

A. Yes, j u s t the — and a t t h a t time i t was probably 

a d i f f e r e n t r u l i n g than i t i s now. 

Q. Did you make any judgments or co n s i d e r a t i o n s when 

you staked t h i s w e l l i n terms of s a t i s f y i n g what e v e n t u a l l y 

became the side boundary setback f o r 64 0 spacing of — What 

i s i t ? 1200 feet? 

A. Yes, i t i s now. There's a 1200-foot setback i n 

th e r e . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . As p a r t of your work f o r B u r l i n g t o n , 

are you also f a m i l i a r w i t h the surface of a l l f o u r q u a r t e r 

sections i n Section 8? 

A. Yes, I am. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Edwards as an expert 

p r o f e s s i o n a l land surveyor. 

MR. HALL: No o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. GALLEGOS: No o b j e c t i o n . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Edwards i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Let's t u r n your a t t e n t i o n t o 

the Marcotte e x h i b i t book, Mr. Edwards. I t ' s e x h i b i t book 

11,809. And i f you t u r n behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 2, 

you're going t o come t o a colored d i s p l a y . There's a 

l o c a t o r map. Let me d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o Section 8 and 

i n t o the southeast quarter of Section 8. There's a very 
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l a r g e red dot t h a t says "Marcotte 2". 

Apart from the dot, there appears t o be two other 

w e l l symbols w i t h i n t h a t quarter s e c t i o n ; do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Can you i d e n t i f y f o r us what those symbols are 

intended t o mean i n terms of which w e l l s they are? 

A. Yes, the Marcotte 2, t h i s dot, k i n d of covers up 

the Scott 14. We're o f f s e t t i n g t h a t pad. And t o the 

southwest t h a t ' s the Marcotte — I b e l i e v e i t ' s the 1A. 

There's a — 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . I f y o u ' l l t u r n t o what has been 

tendered as B u r l i n g t o n E x h i b i t 8, i f y o u ' l l t u r n t o the 

t h i r d page, there's a Form C-102, the surveyor's 

c e r t i f i c a t i o n . I t ' s dated February 16th of 1997. Do you 

see the c e r t i f i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does t h i s represent your c e r t i f i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, t h i s i s when we staked the l o c a t i o n . 

Q. At the time you staked t h i s l o c a t i o n , w i t h i n the 

southeast g u a r t e r of Section 8 was t h e r e a v a i l a b l e t o you a 

standard l o c a t i o n t h a t met the pad-size requirements f o r a 

w e l l l i k e the Marcotte 2 and which would comply both w i t h 

the t h e n - e x i s t i n g 160-acre spacing setback r u l e s and what 

you had understood would be the p o s s i b i l i t y of the side 

boundary setbacks i f 640 acres was adopted f o r t h i s type of 
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well? 

A. No, there wasn't. We t r i e d t o stake i t i n those 

windows and — u t i l i z i n g the l o c a t i o n s and so on t h a t were 

t h e r e , and we f i n a l l y got down, and t h i s where we ended up. 

Q. Why d i d you ev e n t u a l l y stake the w e l l , then, 935 

f e e t from the east l i n e and 154 0 f e e t from the south l i n e ? 

A. Well, t o f i t the other windows, t h a t ' s as close 

as we could get and keep the l o c a t i o n as close as we could 

t o the 64 0-acre and the 160-acre window, which would have 

been roughly 1650 t o 1850 window we were working i n . 

Q. When you were asked t o stake the w e l l i n the 

southeast q u a r t e r , were you asked t o f i n d a p a r t i c u l a r 

unorthodox l o c a t i o n ? 

A. No. We were i n s t r u c t e d t o t r y t o use the 

f a c i l i t i e s t h ere as much as we could t o keep down the 

impact and so on. 

Q. Let's look a t the Marcotte e x h i b i t book, 11,809, 

and t u r n behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 3. There 1s a 

topographic map. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h i s map? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Can you a t t e s t t o whether or not t h i s topographic 

map i s a reasonably accurate d e p i c t i o n of the topography i n 

Section 8? 
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A. Yes, i t is. 

Q. And have you been out on Section 8 and do you 

know the general character of the c o n s t r u c t i o n and 

topography of a l l four quarter sections of 8? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. As r e c e n t l y as l a s t n i g h t , d i d you r e f r e s h your 

r e c o l l e c t i o n and again review the area of Section 8, 

i n c l u d i n g a l l f o u r quarter sections? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. Let's s t a r t w i t h the northwest q u a r t e r . L e t 1 s 

assume a t t h i s p o i n t i n time t h a t you're f r e e t o stake the 

w e l l anywhere i n Section, and you're l o o k i n g f o r a standard 

l o c a t i o n i n the northwest quarter. I n order — 

MR. ALEXANDER: Section 8. 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Section 8 i n the northwest 

q u a r t e r . I s the r e a v a i l a b l e t o you, i n your o p i n i o n , a 

standard l o c a t i o n t h a t meets the requirements f o r a w e l l 

l i k e t h i s ? 

A. No, those houses down there are — They're spaced 

roughly about 500 f o o t apart. They're s m a l l , l i t t l e — 

what you'd c a l l ranch s i t e s , I guess. And the r i v e r runs 

through the northwest quarter on the west si d e , and the 

highway's t h e r e , and t o stay away from the houses w i t h any 

reasonable distance a t a l l i t ' s a very r e s i d e n t i a l 

c l u s t e r e d area. 
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Q. I f you look at the southwest quarter of 8, would 

t h e r e have been a v a i l a b l e t o you a s u i t a b l e w e l l pad f o r 

d r i l l i n g a w e l l of the type t h a t the Marcotte w e l l i s 

w i t h i n t h a t quarter section? 

A. No, we have the same case down t h e r e . I t ' s very, 

very r e s i d e n t i a l and put together r e a l c l o s e - k n i t w i t h the 

residences. And anything back i n the southeast corner, t o 

t r y t o get up on top of t h a t r i d g e , f a l l s o u t s i d e of t h a t 

1200-foot setback. 

Q. F i n a l l y , as you look a t the northwest q u a r t e r of 

8, would th e r e have been a v a i l a b l e i n the northwest q u a r t e r 

a w e l l l o c a t i o n a t a standard p o s i t i o n t h a t would have been 

p r e f e r a b l e t o the l o c a t i o n t h a t you found i n the southeast 

of 8? 

A. No, the northeast quarter i n the — oh, say, the 

n o r t h h a l f of the northeast quarter i s a l i t t l e more open. 

There's h a y f i e l d s up i n th e r e , but i n order t o get 1200 

f o o t , you set back on t h a t road t h a t runs east and w e s t e r l y 

through t h e r e , and we'd have t o o f f s e t i t anyway and s l i d e 

i t n o r t h t o get o f f t h a t road. 

But as you come south, you come back i n t o the 

houses l a y i n g on the highway, and even i n the back where i t 

says "snow d r i f t fence" there — you can see t h a t arrow 

po i n t e d down there — there's a residence t h a t sets i n 

th e r e also t h a t covers up t h a t corner of the window r i g h t 
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th e r e . 

And a l i t t l e f u r t h e r east where the Marcotte 1 

s i t s , you can see a small c i r c l e t h e r e . That wash coming 

down through there a t M i l l e r Canyon i s — between i t and 

the p i p e l i n e s t h a t e x i s t running up t h a t road, I couldn't 

get a l o c a t i o n the size t h a t we b u i l t f o r t h a t . 

Q. I n terms of a p r e f e r a b l e q u a r t e r s e c t i o n , i s 

t h e r e a r i s k management issue concerning p o t e n t i a l sour 

gas? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s one of the t h i n g s we look f o r a l l 

along, i s the p o s i t i o n i n g of t h i s p o s s i b i l i t y of sour gas, 

the p o s i t i o n i n g of the r i g , and also the p o s i t i o n i n g of i t 

on the surface w i t h the r e s i d e n t i a l houses down below and 

ev e r y t h i n g e l s e . That was discussed w i t h Chuck Smith and 

myself before I ever went t h e r e , t o stay out of the 

r e s i d e n t i a l , because i t i s very c l u s t e r e d down i n the 

bottom. 

Q. Does the unorthodox l o c a t i o n i n the southeast of 

8 represent the optimum l o c a t i o n i n order t o meet the 

necessary l i m i t a t i o n s of a l l the surface-use components of 

Section 8? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s the best l o c a t i o n we f e l t we could 

get and get our permits and stay up, keep from r e - r o u t i n g 

p i p e l i n e s and everything else. That i s my p r o f e s s i o n a l 

o p i n i o n , t h a t t h a t i s the best l o c a t i o n a v a i l a b l e f o r t h a t 
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s i z e of a pad i n the southeast of 8. 

Q. On t h i s p a r t i c u l a r occasion, Mr. Edwards, d i d you 

have occasion t o work w i t h any r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s of the 

Bureau of Land Management i n terms of s t a k i n g and l o c a t i n g 

the w e ll? 

A. Well, we d i d a f t e r we got i t staked, we had t o 

take the BLM and d i f f e r e n t — I worked d i r e c t l y w i t h the 

a r c h a e o l o g i s t s as we staked i t , but the BLM was brought i n 

a f t e r we found a s u i t a b l e spot. 

Q. Did you o b t a i n the necessary approvals from the 

Bureau of Land Management w i t h regards t o the proposed 

s t a k i n g t h a t you had f o r t h i s well? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And was i t , t o the best of your knowledge, 

subsequently s a t i s f a c t o r y f o r the BLM and t h e i r v a r i o u s 

l e v e l s of approval f o r w e l l l ocations? 

A. Yes, i t was approved through the surface agencies 

t h a t I work w i t h , f o r surface impact. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 

Mr. Edwards, Mr. Catanach. 

We would again move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of E x h i b i t s 

8 and 9. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Any o b j e c t i o n a t t h i s p o i n t , 

Mr. Gallegos? 

MR. GALLEGOS: Yeah, i f r u l i n g could be w i t h h e l d , 
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please, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Pardon me? 

MR. GALLEGOS: I f r u l i n g could be w i t h h e l d u n t i l 

cross-examination. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. 

MR. GALLEGOS: May we proceed? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Yes, please. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Thank you. 

CRO S S-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. GALLEGOS: 

Q. Mr. Edwards, you say t h a t you f r e q u e n t l y stake 

w e l l s f o r B u r l i n g t o n Resources. With about what frequency 

do you have assignments t o do th a t ? 

A. I work w i t h them weekly. Approximately t h i s year 

I've approximately done 200 l o c a t i o n s f o r them. 

Q. Who i s i t a t B u r l i n g t o n Resources t h a t you 

t y p i c a l l y r eceive the request from? 

A. Charles Smith, Chuck Smith. 

Q. And what department i s he in? 

A. He's i n the d r i l l i n g / c o n s t r u c t i o n , c o n s t r u c t i o n 

f o r the d r i l l i n g department. 

Q. On t h i s w e l l i n p a r t i c u l a r i n Section 8, the 

Marcotte Number 2, who contacted you or requested your work 

on t h i s w e ll? 

A. Chuck Smith. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. Okay. About when — Can you t e l l us, with 

reference t o your c e r t i f i c a t i o n of February 16th, about 

when were you given the orders t o do t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

survey? 

A. Approximately a couple days before, because as 

i t ' s marked, I was i n s t r u c t e d i t was c o n f i d e n t i a l , and they 

wanted t o go out there and look a t i t and come back w i t h 

what was out t h e r e , and then we went back out t o stake i t . 

And i t was — Usually i t i s n ' t t h a t quick of a 

tur n o v e r , but t h i s one they wanted t o get r i g h t on, so we 

— and I don't know i f i t ' s because of the c o n f i d e n t i a l i t y 

or what, but I was t o l d t o keep i t q u i e t , and we looked a t 

i t , and I worked w i t h Chuck. 

Q. Okay. And you were also t o l d t h a t t h i s was a 

matter t o be expedited? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Now, were you i n s t r u c t e d t h a t t he l o c a t i o n 

would be i n the southeast quarter? 

A. Yes, I was asked t o look f o r a l o c a t i o n i n the 

southeast quarter t h a t would meet the p o s s i b i l i t i e s of a 

160- or a 640-acre spacing, which give us a r e a l small 

window. And we discussed a l l t h a t , and I went out and 

looked. 

And t h a t ' s when I come back and t o l d them what 

a l l we had, and they t o l d me t o give them the best l o c a t i o n 
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I could, t h a t would get the c l o s e s t t o meeting those 

requirements. 

Q. Okay, what d i d you understand the requirements 

would be f o r a 160? 

A. 790 t o 1190, or the 1450 t o 1850 window. I t ' s a 

160 gas i n the San Juan Basin. 

Q. Okay. And you've staked many w e l l s on standard 

l o c a t i o n s on 160-acre spacing, have you not, s i r ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Okay. What d i d you understand the standard 

l o c a t i o n spacing would be on a 640-acre p r o r a t i o n u n i t ? 

A. 1650 from the outer boundaries, and I t h i n k i t 

was 13 0 on the q u a r t e r - q u a r t e r l i n e or the q u a r t e r l i n e , 

but i n order t o stay i n t h a t 160 I had the 1650 t o 1850 — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — window. 

Q. Did you — 1650 — 1650 f e e t from the outer 

boundary i s what you understood would be the — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — the requirements on a 640-acre spacing u n i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And where d i d you get t h a t i nformation? 

A. Out of a pamphlet I have on — t h a t showed 64 0-

acre gas spacing f o r the San Juan Basin. 

Q. Okay. So the l o c a t i o n you e v e n t u a l l y staked 
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t u r n e d out t o be some 700 f e e t or so o f f of what you 

considered t o be the spacing, i f i t were a 640-acre 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Did you say t h a t you had also some 

i n s t r u c t i o n — I thought you said t o use f a c i l i t i e s t h a t 

existed? Was t h a t your testimony? 

A. Yes, when we got down and looked a t the windows 

we could work i n and what we had and we also t r i e d t o stay 

as much as we could w i t h the f a c i l i t i e s t h a t were i n t h e r e 

because of the size of the pad, one reason being t o keep 

these under f i v e acres i n s i z e . 

Q. Okay, and why was there any c o n s t r a i n t on keeping 

the pad under f i v e acres i n size? 

A. Well, anything over f i v e acres, we need a storm 

water discharge permit. That's a monthly concern. We have 

t o do a monthly check of the drainages and there's several 

compliances w i t h i t , and i f we can keep them under t h a t i n 

s i z e , we do. 

And t o my knowledge, t h a t ' s probably why we 

stayed c l o s e r t o the pads as f a r as, i f I had a choice of 

s t a y i n g by a pad or not, instead of using — i n a 

disturbance. 

Q. Well, i f you go over the f i v e - a c r e pad s i z e , then 

there's a r a t h e r lengthy process, i s t h e r e not, t o o b t a i n 
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the — the drilling each permit? 

A. I j u s t d i d the f i e l d work f o r i t , but I don't 

know timewise how much i t takes. I t ' s j u s t t h a t i t ' s a 

c o n t i n u i n g p r o j e c t ; I know t h a t , t h a t p a r t of i t , t h a t i t ' s 

a monthly r e p o r t t h a t ' s r e q u i r e d from then on. Even on 

some of the l o c a t i o n s we've abandoned we have t o keep doing 

t h a t monthly r e p o r t u n t i l whichever p o i n t i t ' s s a t i s f i e d 

t h a t they w i l l drop i t — 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. — t h a t i t ' s back t o complete r e h a b i l i t a t i o n . 

Q. How d i d you know i n February, 1997, t h a t you 

should take i n t o account the spacing f o r the l o c a t i o n of 

t h i s w e l l , based on 640-acre spacing? 

A. I was t o l d by Mr. Smith t o t r y t o honor those two 

windows. I d i d n ' t , a t the time, know which way i t was 

going, and t h a t was my t a r g e t . 

Q. Okay. Did he — What else d i d he inf o r m you 

about the 640-acre spacing requirements i n February of 

1997? 

A. Well, there wasn't much discu s s i o n on the 640 as 

f a r as the requirements of i t , other than I discussed i t 

w i t h them t h a t I had t h a t 1650-foot setback, and t h a t ' s 

where I would be, i n t h a t window. 

Q. Okay. Now, you are not t e s t i f y i n g , are you, Mr. 

Edwards, t h a t the topography p r o h i b i t s t h i s w e l l l o c a t i o n 
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being moved, let's say, 300, 400, 500 feet to the west of 

the l o c a t i o n t h a t you've staked? 

A. Yes, where i t e x i s t s now, i t ' s approximately a 

hundred and — Well, the edge of i t i s r i g h t on the edge of 

t h a t canyon. There's a canyon runs down through t h e r e , and 

i f I t r y t o move i t over t o the west I ' l l f a l l o f f i n t o 

t h a t canyon, and I ' d have t o have 70 f o o t of f i l l down 

th e r e . I would never get a — get i t through the BLM 

requirements t o put i t there. 

Q. Well, what about going on t o the base a f t e r you 

go down over the ledge? 

A. Well, I t r i e d — 

Q. The topography l e v e l s out again t o the west, does 

i t not, s i r ? 

A. Well, not t i l l i t gets i n the next h a l f of the 

s e c t i o n . But down i n the southwest t h e r e , y o u ' l l n o t i c e 

t h a t there's a spot down there. We t r i e d t o put i t down 

th e r e where t h a t p i p e l i n e goes through. And we couldn't 

get enough room t o f i t i t i n there and s a t i s f y a l l our 

requirements t o put i t there. 

We d i d — t h a t ' s -- We d i d t r y t o put i t down i n 

the southwest of where i t e x i s t s , and when we got done w i t h 

a l l our p o s s i b i l i t i e s I found a spot up t h e r e by the Scott 

14 and I took i t back t o them w i t h what I had, and they 

approved i t , and I staked i t at t h a t time. 
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Q. Let's look a t the map you were d i r e c t e d t o 

e a r l i e r by Mr. K e l l a h i n on the Marcotte Number 2 where you 

have the b i g red dot. 

A. Okay. 

Q. This map, i t ' s the f i r s t one. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. To the southwest of your Marcotte Number 2 

l o c a t i o n i s the i n d i c a t i o n of an e x i s t i n g w e l l , and I t h i n k 

you s a i d t h a t was the Marcotte Number 1? 

A. The 1A, I b e l i e v e i t i s . 

Q. 1A? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Can you t e l l the Examiner what the 

distances from the s e c t i o n boundary are f o r the l o c a t i o n of 

t h a t w e l l ? 

A. No, I d i d n ' t b r i n g t h a t w i t h me. Just from 

l o o k i n g a t i t t h e r e , w i t h — t r y i n g t o scope w i t h my eye, 

I ' d say i t ' s probably 990 from the south l i n e and 1500 or 

so from the east. 

Q. Okay. Obviously, the topography permits a w e l l 

l o c a t i o n a t t h a t s i t e ; i s n ' t t h a t true? 

A. Well, I even looked t h e r e i n — r i g h t out — 

Q. Well, would you answer the question f i r s t ? 

Obviously there's a w e l l t h e r e , so there's topography. 

A. There's a w e l l t h e r e , not the s i z e of a w e l l I 
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was trying to put in at this time, though. This location I 

staked f o r the Marcotte 2 i s approximately t w o - t h i r d s 

bigger than our other l o c a t i o n s we staked. This l o c a t i o n 

was staked out 400 f o o t long by 340 f o o t wide, and our 

other l o c a t i o n s , even on our Dakotas, which are our bigger 

ones, we stake them about 320 by — Well, i t was 300 by 

240. 

Q. 300 by 240 i s what you stake f o r a Dakota w e l l ? 

A. Yeah, t h a t ' s what we use f o r a Dakota-Mesaverde 

dual completion, and t h a t ' s been the biggest ones we've 

been s t a k i n g — 

Q. And t h i s i s — 

A. — other than t h i s . And t h i s p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n 

was staked 400 by 340. 

Q. 400 by 340? 

A. Yes, t h a t was the minimum s i z e . 

Q. So a r e a l volume, then, i s what? An acre and a 

h a l f ? 

A. No, w i t h amendment they allow us — the BLM 

allows us of 50-foot c o n s t r u c t i o n zone we have t o f i g u r e i n 

our acreage, and i t comes out — i t ' s over f o u r and a h a l f 

acres. Because you're now 500 by 440. I don't have a 

c a l c u l a t o r on me, but i t ' s a l a r g e l o c a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. Let me ask you t o gi v e us some i n f o r m a t i o n 

about E x h i b i t A, i f you're able t o . That's the — The 
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f i r s t page is the BLM Application for Permit to D r i l l . 

Have you seen t h i s document before? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Do you n o t i c e t h a t t h e r e are some 

handwritten e n t r i e s on i t ? I t h i n k the f i r s t one i s up 

under Number 2, and then a t 10 and other places? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the han d w r i t t e n 

e n t r i e s ? 

A. No, I'm not. I don't know where they came from. 

Q. When you saw the document, was i t as typed 

w i t h o u t the handwriting? The s c r a t c h i n g out of the 160 

acres, f o r example? 

A. When I saw the document I d i d n ' t examine the 

f r o n t page, because when I go t o b u i l d these l o c a t i o n s I 

look back i n a t the BLM s t i p u l a t i o n s , and I r e a l l y p r e t t y 

much look a t the f r o n t pages as look a t the name. I r e a l l y 

don't know i f the one t h a t came out f o r f i n a l approval, i f 

t h i s i s a copy of i t or i f t h i s i s from the o f f i c e . I 

don't know. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . The t h i r d page of the document bears 

your s i g n a t u r e , your c e r t i f i c a t i o n and si g n a t u r e as of 

February 16, 1997, and you recognize t h a t document — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — do you not? 
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A. Yes, I do. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Do you n o t i c e again there's some 

handwritten e n t r i e s ? The f i r s t one up by the word 

" w i l d c a t " , was t h a t on there when you signed t h i s document 

February 16, 1997? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Do you understand p a r t i c u l a r l y what i t means? I 

read " L e a d v i l l e (G)". Does t h a t have any s i g n i f i c a n c e t o 

you? 

A. Well, not i n f i l l i n g out the p l a t s . But i n my 

s t a k i n g , i f i t ' s a c e r t a i n zone, I l i k e t o know t h a t so 

t h a t I know which requirement I'm working i n . 

But as f a r as the p l a t , when I t u r n i n the p l a t s , 

s t a r t i n g w i t h the property name t h e r e , I s t a r t f i l l i n g i t 

i n t h e r e and coming down and f i l l i n g i n the surface 

l o c a t i o n i n f o r m a t i o n and then the c e r t i f i c a t e a t the 

bottom, and then where you see i n Number 17, where i t says 

"operator c e r t i f i c a t i o n " , Meridian — or, excuse me, 

B u r l i n g t o n — B u r l i n g t o n does t h a t , and they f i l l i n the 

top as f a r as the pool and the API number and so on. I 

j u s t c e r t i f y t o the survey i n f o r m a t i o n on the p l a t . 

Q. But you also are responsible f o r item number 10, 

the — I don't know i f t h a t ' s a 10 the r e or not, but anyway 

the surface l o c a t i o n l i n e ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. Okay. And the dedicated acreage, l i n e item 

number — I t h i n k t h a t ' s a 12 — are you respo n s i b l e f o r 

t h a t ? 

A. No, I d i d not do the d e d i c a t i o n acreage. 

Q. On 160-acre spacing, t h i s l o c a t i o n would be a 

standard l o c a t i o n , correct? 

A. Yes, i t would. 

Q. Of the — what you say was — t u r n s out t o be 

about a 4.5-acre pad, how much of t h a t overlaps or, i n 

e f f e c t , uses the e x i s t i n g pad f o r the Scott 14? 

A. Now out of t h a t pad we've probably got 100 f o o t 

of t h a t pad on the n o r t h end, i s exact — was d i s t u r b e d 

e a r l i e r w i t h the Scott 14 l o c a t i o n . I t ' s p a r t of the same 

pad; we've extended i t . 

Q. I n other words, j u s t 100 f o o t i s the u t i l i z a t i o n 

of the e x i s t i n g pad? 

A. Yes, the back end of our new pad s i t s r i g h t o f f 

the wellhead of the Scott 14, and t h a t o l d pad i s probably 

100 f o o t out t h e r e , and then we go on i n t o our new 

disturbance. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Thank you, Mr. Edwards, t h a t ' s a l l 

the questions t h a t I have. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Gallegos, do you want t o 

address — Are you going t o obj e c t t o the admission of 

these — 
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MR. GALLEGOS: I'm going t o o b j e c t t o the 

admission of E x h i b i t Number 9. I have no o b j e c t i o n t o 

Number 8. 

MR. CARROLL: Mr. K e l l a h i n , t h i s i s from the BLM 

f i l e ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Let me see i f I can avoid the 

o b j e c t i o n . I have no t r o u b l e d e l e t i n g the f i r s t cover 

sheet i f t h a t d i s t u r b s Mr. Gallegos. 

What I'm looking t o do i s t o have you compare the 

two C-102s. Both of them are surveyed by Mr. Edwards. 

One i s the o r i g i n a l f i l i n g under 160 acres. I t 

bears a date of March 2 6th. That i s the one i n the OCD 

f i l e s . 

The one t h a t I have here i n E x h i b i t Number 9 

shows a date of June 30th, 1997, which i s a f t e r t he spacing 

has changed t o 64 0. The surveyed l o c a t i o n stays the same, 

obviou s l y , and the d e d i c a t i o n has been requested t o be 

changed. 

The i n f o r m a t i o n noted on E x h i b i t 8, e i t h e r i n 

t y p i n g or by hand, accurately reproduces what's i n your 

f i l e , and I simply d u p l i c a t e d t h a t and brought i t u p s t a i r s . 

MR. GALLEGOS: What — excuse me — 

MR. KELLAHIN: E x h i b i t 8. 

MR. GALLEGOS: How does E x h i b i t 9 show t h a t the 

d e d i c a t i o n i s t o be changed? 
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MR. KELLAHIN: C e r t i f i e d on June 3 0th of 1997, 

you can see the d e d i c a t i o n i n the blank number 11 now says 

640 acres. 

I n the OCD f i l e s the change was made on t h a t 

C-102 i n handwriting. I t was o r i g i n a l l y 160 acres, and 

someone — I don't know who d i d t h i s — has changed t h i s t o 

63 9. I t may have been done by D i v i s i o n s t a f f , i t may have 

been done by B u r l i n g t o n personnel. A l l I'm showing you i s , 

those two documents are i n your f i l e . 

MR. GALLEGOS: And you acknowledge, Mr. K e l l a h i n , 

t h a t i n both, even June 30th, i t s t i l l d e p i c t s on the p l a t 

a 160-acre spacing i n the southeast q u a r t e r 

MR. KELLAHIN: What I'm showing on those p l a t s i s 

t h a t Mr. Edwards' s t a k i n g i s the same on each p l a t . 

MR. GALLEGOS: Well, f o r t h a t purpose, i f i t does 

show t h a t — I'm not sure what i t does show, but f o r t h a t 

purpose w e ' l l have no o b j e c t i o n . And t h a t — So the f i r s t 

page — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I ' l l j u s t take the f i r s t page o f f . 

MR. GALLEGOS: Well, i t can remain as — 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t . 

MR. GALLEGOS: — p a r t of i t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: We'll j u s t — 

MR. GALLEGOS: Just be admitted f o r the purposes 

of t h i s second and t h i r d page. 
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EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, E x h i b i t s 8 and 9 w i l l 

be admitted as evidence. 

Mr. H a l l , d i d you have any questions of t h i s 

witness? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. B r i e f l y , Mr. Edwards. I understood you t o say 

t h a t — Was i t you or your f i r m t h a t submitted the n o t i c e 

of s t a k i n g , paperwork, t o BLM? 

A. No, no. 

Q. You d i d n ' t have any r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r p e r m i t t i n g 

w i t h BLM? 

A. No, the p e r m i t t i n g w i t h the BLM, I was 

respon s i b l e f o r the o n - s i t e i n s p e c t i o n w i t h the BLM surface 

agency, t o take them t o the f i e l d and t o show them what I 

d i d , why I d i d i t , and t o get the f i e l d approval. 

But the permission t o stake and so on was done 

and given t o me before I — When I staked the w e l l , they — 

Q. I see. 

A. — they l e t me know t h a t they have i t , and they 

f i l e d the paper. 

Q. So would you be aware of any d r i l l i n g time frame 

l i m i t a t i o n s t h a t the BLM may have imposed on t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r w e ll? 

A. No, other than — Sometimes by area, t h e r e are 
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certain areas that I'm aware of where we have winter 

s t i p u l a t i o n s and so on. 

Q. But you know of none f o r t h i s w e l l ? 

A. I wasn't aware of one being r i g h t here a t the 

time. There probably i s , I don't know. 

MR. HALL: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Edwards. 

MR. CARROLL: I have one question. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARROLL: 

Q. Mr. Edwards what's t h i s r e s i d e n t i a l area named? 

I t ' s not i n a town, i s i t ? Section 8? 

A. No. No, i t ' s j u s t — i t ' s c a l l e d the Cedar H i l l 

community, mostly, i s what they r e f e r t o i t as. I t ' s 

r i g h t — 

Q. But i t ' s not Cedar H i l l s town? 

A. The town of Cedar H i l l , no. 

Q. That's two and a h a l f miles north? 

A. Well, a t the town of Cedar H i l l anymore there's a 

s t o r e . Where the o l d s t o r e used t o be there's a residence 

t h e r e , there's a f i r e s t a t i o n t h e r e , and t h a t ' s about i t . 

And the r e s t i s j u s t the same as the r e s t of the community, 

j u s t r e s i d e n t i a l areas. There i s no town of Cedar H i l l 

anymore. 

Q. So you would c a l l t h i s r e s i d e n t i a l development i n 

here the Cedar H i l l s community? 
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A. Yes. 

MR. CARROLL: That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Mr. Edwards, have you s a t i s f i e d y o u r s e l f t h a t the 

southeast q u a r t e r of Section 8 — as f a r as topographic, 

v a r i o u s surface o b s t r u c t i o n s , t h a t the southeast q u a r t e r of 

Section 8 i s the best quarter s e c t i o n i n which t o d r i l l 

t h i s w e l l ? 

A. Yes, e s p e c i a l l y w i t h the p o t e n t i a l of sour gas, 

what I worked on, i t i s very c l u s t e r e d i n the bottom. I t ' s 

f l a t t e r , but i t ' s j u s t f u l l of residences. 

Q. This k i n d of keeps i t away from the residences, 

keeps them out of danger? 

A. (No response) 

Q. And w i t h i n the southeast q u a r t e r , you s a t i s f i e d 

y o u r s e l f t h a t t h i s i s the best l o c a t i o n — when you're 

c o n s i d e r i n g the other surface o b s t r u c t i o n s and va r i o u s 

other t h i n g s , t h i s i s the best l o c a t i o n i n which t o d r i l l 

the w e l l ? 

A. Yes. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I have no f u r t h e r questions 

of t h i s witness. 

MR. GALLEGOS: May I i n q u i r e j u s t one item? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Yes. 
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FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. GALLEGOS: 

Q. What gives you t o be l i e v e t h a t on completion t h i s 

w e l l i s going t o emit what I t h i n k you r e f e r r e d t o as sour 

gas or H2S, I guess you're r e f e r r i n g to? 

A. Oh, j u s t t h a t I was t o l d i t was going t o be a 

deep t e s t w i t h the p o t e n t i a l of i t . I don't — That's 

about a l l I know of i t . 

And the reason, I guess, they t e l l me, i s because 

when I s i t u a t e these l o c a t i o n s , i f t h e r e i s a p o t e n t i a l of 

sour gas we work much, much more on wind p o t e n t i a l than a 

l o c a t i o n t h a t we don't f e e l we're going t o have i t . I f 

i t ' s going t o be cheaper or less damage t o face i t i n t o the 

wind, we can do t h a t . 

Q. Who t o l d you there was a p o t e n t i a l of sour gas 

f o r t h i s w e ll? 

A. Charles Smith. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Thank you. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: This witness may be excused. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my p r e s e n t a t i o n , 

Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. K e l l a h i n , i f I could I ' d 

l i k e t o r e c a l l James S t r i c k l e r . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. S t r i c k l e r 

I assume, Mr. Catanach, t h a t the discussions now 
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are w i t h o u t the a i d of the attorneys and you want t o 

examine the witnesses a t t h i s p o i n t . Do you expect us t o 

re-examine a f t e r you examine? I would hope not. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: No, I don't t h i n k t h a t t h a t ' s 

a good idea. I j u s t have a few questions of Mr. S t r i c k l e r . 

MR. CARROLL: And I ' l l remind you, Mr. S t r i c k l e r , 

you're s t i l l under oath. 

MR. STRICKLER: Yes, s i r . 

JAMES R.J. STRICKLER (Recalled), 

the witness h e r e i n , having been p r e v i o u s l y d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r , present i n the room i s a 

gentleman, I be l i e v e by the name of Mr. H a r r i s ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

MR. HARRIS: Yes, s i r . 

Q. (By Examiner Catanach) Do you know, i n f a c t , 

what Mr. Har r i s ' s i n t e r e s t i n these u n i t s are? 

A. Mr. H a r r i s i s a mineral and r o y a l t y owner. 

Q. Okay, underneath — 

A. Amoco * s — one of Amoco's 1 eases. 

Q. I n Section — 

A. I n Section 8. 

Q. Section 8. I s t h i s an i n t e r e s t t h a t B u r l i n g t o n 
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is trying to re-lease at this point? 

A. No, s i r , i t ' s an i n t e r e s t — He has an ownership 

under a lease t h a t provides f o r 3 2 0-acre spacing, and so we 

sent him a l e t t e r asking him t o consider amending h i s lease 

f o r 640-acre spacing f o r the deep gas only. 

He has — His leases provide f o r 320-acre spacing 

f o r the Mesaverde formation i n the west h a l f of 8. 

Q. So you do have an o f f e r a t t h i s p o i n t t o Mr. 

H a r r i s t o re-lease — or amend h i s lease? 

A. To amend h i s lease, yes, s i r . We sent him an 

amendment t o h i s lease, amendment t o the o i l and gas lease, 

t o provide f o r 64 0-acre spacing. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARROLL: 

Q. And h i s lease i s w i t h Amoco? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. And i n E x h i b i t 4 t o Case 11,809, where i s 

Mr. H a r r i s ' s i n t e r e s t l i s t e d ? 

A. Mr. H a r r i s must represent one of these owners on 

t h i s l i s t . 

Q. I guess E x h i b i t 1 would be a b e t t e r — 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I s t h a t , i n f a c t , c o r r e c t , 

Mr. Harris? 

MR. HARRIS: Yes, s i r , i t ' s underneath Mary 

H a r r i s . 
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THE WITNESS: Mary H a r r i s . 

MR. HARRIS: And the lease i s the o r i g i n a l 

lease — 

THE WITNESS: Mary Maude — 

MR. HARRIS: — lease, signed i n 1951. 

THE WITNESS: Mary Maude H a r r i s . 

MR. CARROLL: And t h a t 1 s the only i n t e r e s t you 

represent? 

MR. HARRIS: I t encompasses a t o t a l 37 acres i n 

Section 8, and there was also an a d d i t i o n a l 79 acres i n 

Section 8 which Amoco Production Company has not made 

payment on f o r over 20 years. 

MR. CARROLL: That's not our concern, Mr. H a r r i s , 

r e g a r d i n g a payment of r o y a l t i e s . So you're j u s t on behalf 

of the Mary Maude H a r r i s i n t e r e s t ? 

MR. HARRIS: Yes, s i r , I'm on behalf of the 

simple f a c t of wanting t o pool, compulsory p o o l i n g of her 

acreage i n Section 8 i n t o a 64 0-acre u n i t . 

the f a c t the r o y a l t y has not been paid p r o p e r l y on the 

o r i g i n a l 32 0 acres i n t h a t u n i t . 

MR. CARROLL: We understand you have a q u a r r e l 

w i t h them regarding payment of r o y a l t y . But nonpayment of 

r o y a l t y won't a f f e c t our dec i s i o n i n t h i s case; are you 

MR. CARROLL: Yeah, we understand t h a t . 

MR. HARRIS: We are s t r i c t l y against t h a t , due t o 
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aware of t h a t ? 

MR. HARRIS: Yes, I'm aware of t h a t , t h a t i t 

don't a f f e c t — Are you also t e l l i n g me, then — 

MR. CARROLL: And i t doesn't a f f e c t your r i g h t 

a gainst — 

MR. HARRIS: Does i t a f f e c t our acreage going 

i n t o the 64 0-acre pooling? 

MR. CARROLL: I t sure w i l l . 

MR. HARRIS: Yeah. 

MR. CARROLL: But i t won't a f f e c t your r i g h t t o 

recover r o y a l t i e s i n any l i t i g a t i o n you may have against 

your lessee. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: That l i t i g a t i o n i s probably 

w i t h Amoco; i s t h a t your — 

MR. HARRIS: Yeah, from what I understand, t h a t 

deep-hole minerals were never leased. Therefore, how can 

they be going down there t o get t h a t mineral i f they don't 

h o l d t i t l e t o i t ? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. S t r i c k l e r , do you want t o 

respond t o t h i s ? 

THE WITNESS: Mr. H a r r i s has a di s p u t e w i t h 

Amoco. Amoco has a v a l i d o i l and gas lease. Apparently 

there's been some r o y a l t y payment issues a f f e c t i n g the 

H a r r i s i n t e r e s t . These leases have been he l d by pr o d u c t i o n 

since the e a r l y 1950s by two Mesaverde w e l l s and two PC 
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wells. 

I don't r e a l l y know what else t o do, other than 

s t a t e t h a t , and t h a t Amoco w i l l a s s i s t Mr. H a r r i s i n 

researching h i s complaints, as f a r as r o y a l t i e s . 

MR. HARRIS: They a i n ' t a s s i s t e d i n the past two 

years on i t y e t . They've j u s t ignored me, they've blown me 

o f f u n t i l t h i s meeting come up. And the man I'm i n contact 

w i t h contacts me on h i s vacation when he f i n d s out t h a t I 

am coming here. He pleads w i t h me not t o come t o the 

Commission, f o r the simple f a c t they know they don't hold 

t i t l e t o anything below the Mesaverde fo r m a t i o n . 

Therefore, i f you farmed i t out from Amoco, you 

hol d t i t l e t o t h a t n e i t h e r . 

THE WITNESS: We disagree. 

MR. HARRIS: So how can you r u l e on something 

l i k e t h a t u n t i l i t ' s s e t t l e d i n the d i s t r i c t c o u r t on who 

a c t u a l l y does hold t i t l e t o i t ? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Well — 

MR. HARRIS: Unleased mineral r i g h t s i s unleased 

m i n e r a l r i g h t s . 

MR. CARROLL: Well, we have the a u t h o r i t y here t o 

pool unleased mineral r i g h t s . 

MR. HARRIS: You have the a u t h o r i t y t o j u s t about 

do what you want t o do; I understand t h a t . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I suspect t h a t a l o t of t h i s 
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i s going t o end up i n d i s t r i c t c o u r t . I don't know what t o 

do a t t h i s p o i n t but j u s t proceed. And I'm not sure any 

k i n d of continuance i s going t o solve any of these land 

issues. 

I b e l i e v e you had a request, Mr. H a r r i s , t o 

continue the case. I don't t h i n k i t ' s going t o serve any 

purpose t o continue i t . 

MR. HARRIS: Okay, can I ask a question here? We 

were sent an amendment t o the o r i g i n a l lease. Why d i d they 

send t h a t amendment t o the o r i g i n a l lease out? 

THE WITNESS: Mr. H a r r i s — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Do you want him t o answer? 

MR. CARROLL: Go ahead, Mr. S t r i c k l e r . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Go ahead and answer. 

THE WITNESS: We — As a courtesy t o the 

landowners, we wanted t o o f f e r an amendment t o your leases. 

We put you on n o t i c e t h a t t h i s Marcotte Number 2 w e l l i s 

going t o be d r i l l e d on 640-acre spacing and t h a t your 

leases provide f o r 320-acre spacing, and so i t ' s — as a 

courtesy t o the landowners, we n o t i f i e d you and o f f e r e d you 

an amendment t o amend your lease. I n the absence of t h a t 

amendment, the NMOCD w i l l pool those i n t e r e s t s 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e l y . 

MR. HARRIS: Well, I was n o t i f i e d of the l o c a t i o n 

and the d r i l l i n g going on by a man from Conoco who come out 
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t o the farm and s i t down w i t h us and discussed t h i s issue 

w i t h us. This was l a s t f a l l . And he informed us t h a t they 

wanted a r i g h t of way t o do a seismograph on our p r o p e r t y 

t o f i n d the edge of a pool. 

We d i d not consent t o t h a t because of the simple 

f a c t t h a t Amoco i s i n breach of the o r i g i n a l c o n t r a c t . 

Well, a t t h a t time you t o l d me on the phone a f t e r 

speaking t h a t you guys proceeded t o do t h a t anyway, which 

took place a t midnight. You throwed our walkways o f f , a 

major headgate on a lar g e d i t c h , i r r i g a t i o n d i t c h , on the 

r i v e r , where we couldn't get down the r e t o i t , and you went 

through t h e r e a t n i g h t , d i s r u p t e d e v e r y t h i n g , and went 

ahead and d i d your seismograph. 

This man from Conoco t e l l s us t h a t , You don't 

have t o worry about no d r i l l i n g i n the v a l l e y anyway, 

because everything's going t o be done up on the BLM, but 

they are going t o be d r i l l i n g i n the zone. 

So from t h a t p o i n t on, I get nothing from nobody. 

And you know what? When i t comes r i g h t down t o i t , we own 

the minerals, not you. We do. You lease them, p o i n t 

blank. We own them. And i f i t has t o go i n t o a c o u r t of 

law, i f we have t o take everybody, then we can do t h a t , 

because we do got the paperwork t o s t a t e what we got t h e r e . 

We do got the lawyers t h a t w i l l do i t . 

So a l l I'm here f o r , before you come here, t o 
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c l e a r t h i s up w i t h Amoco, okay? So I'm against the 

compulsory p o o l i n g on i t , the f a c t t h a t t i l l t h i n g s are 

st r a i g h t e n e d out you guys are going t o agree and do j u s t 

e x a c t l y what your paperwork from Amoco says. That's what 

you're basing i t a l l on. 

MR. CARROLL: Mr. H a r r i s , I j u s t have a couple 

questions. 

You received n o t i c e of t h i s hearing? I take i t 

t h a t ' s why you're here. 

MR. HARRIS: Yes, s i r . 

MR. CARROLL: And have you received proposals t o 

purchase your i n t e r e s t or t o have i t farmed out or — No, 

f o r amendment of the lease? 

MR. HARRIS: Just f o r amendment of the lease. 

And they d i d n ' t send a l l the proper paperwork a t the time. 

They had t o reissue i t . And when they reissued i t , we 

received t h a t about June 28th, I b e l i e v e . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: We'll note your o b j e c t i o n , 

Mr. H a r r i s , and take your comments i n t o c o n s i d e r a t i o n — 

MR. HARRIS: Thank you. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: — i n w r i t i n g t h i s order. 

MR. HARRIS: Appreciate i t . 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r , we had a witness from T o t a l 
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earlier who characterized Meridian's — or Burlington's 

n e g o t i a t i o n w i t h them as not i n good f a i t h . Can you 

summarize what you b e l i e v e t o be your p o s i t i o n was i n those 

n e g o t i a t i o n s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . As Deborah G i l c h r i s t mentioned, we've 

had many conversations over the phone disc u s s i n g the GLA-46 

and t h e i r p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n t h i s w e l l . Correspondence began 

i n J u l y , and i t got serious i n February, A p r i l and again i n 

June. 

Deborah — very nice lady — was d e a l i n g i n — or 

she informed me t h a t T o t a l Minatome i s a — i s a s t r o n g 

company, t h a t they l i k e w i l d c a t w e l l s , t h a t they l i k e the 

o p p o r t u n i t y t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n w i l d c a t w e l l s , they've 

d r i l l e d a l o t of w e l l s i n south Louisiana t h a t are h i g h -

r i s k and very expensive, and t h a t t h i s i s i n t r i g u i n g t o 

them. So we had some r e a l p o s i t i v e v i s i t s over the phone 

and — and very amicable v i s i t s . 

We sent out these l e t t e r s t o get the b a l l r o l l i n g 

on t h e i r p a r t i c i p a t i o n , farmout or p a r t i c i p a t e or s e l l . 

They — Their g e o l o g i s t was r e a l i n t e r e s t e d i n 

the p l a y since he's worked i t before, and he expressed an 

i n t e r e s t i n reviewing our p r o p r i e t a r y i n f o r m a t i o n . I t o l d 

him t h a t we weren't able t o . We t a l k e d back and f o r t h , and 

they suggested — I suggested, Well, i f we show you a 

p r e s e n t a t i o n would you be amenable t o pre- — you know, 
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pre-agree on the terms and conditions? And they s a i d 

they'd e n t e r t a i n i t . 

We've had — Deborah also s a i d t h a t the l e a s t 

they would do i s farm out t h e i r i n t e r e s t t o us; they 

wouldn't h o l d us up. I took t h a t very s i n c e r e l y . 

I asked Deborah what happened when n e g o t i a t i o n s 

s t a r t e d t o f a l t e r . And t o Deborah's c r e d i t , she proposed, 

recommended t o her management, t o work out an acceptable 

deal w i t h us. And she was shot down by her upper 

management. Nothing she could do about i t . Very 

d i s a p p o i n t i n g . She t r i e d her best. 

We have a disagreement on the handling of t h i s 

agreement, and I apologize t o Deborah r i g h t here i n f r o n t 

of everybody i f I was t h r e a t e n i n g i n any way. I d i d n ' t 

t h i n k I was, but she obviously f e l t t h a t way. 

But t h a t ' s how these n e g o t i a t i o n s went, went very 

p o s i t i v e . And then a l l of a sudden they turned out not so 

p o s i t i v e . 

Q. Well, Mr. S t r i c k l e r , do you r e c a l l making a 

statement t o t h i s lady t h a t the r e s u l t s of t h i s n e g o t i a t i o n 

may a f f e c t f u t u r e n e g o t i a t i o n s i n other areas? 

A. I may have — I may have s a i d t h a t t h i s damages 

our r e l a t i o n s h i p , because I've t o l d my management t h a t 

T o t a l Minatome i s going t o support our w e l l , and never was 

i t mentioned, r e l i a n c e under an o l d p r o v i s i o n t h a t r e f e r r e d 
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to a carry on 18 Mesaverde wells. I mean, that was just 

q u i t e a s u r p r i s e . So our management was r e a l s u r p r i s e d . 

So n a t u r a l l y , t h a t about-face i n her g o o d - f a i t h 

n e g o t i a t i o n s — And again, i t ' s not her f a u l t ; i t ' s her top 

management's d e c i s i o n . She r e p o r t s t o higher-ups. Those 

statements were made t o get the p o i n t across t o her 

management, please work w i t h us. 

I t h i n k I was very r e c o n c i l i a t o r y , having a 

setback l i k e t h a t , because we thought we were r e a l l y on our 

way t o making an acceptable trade. 

Q. You don't consider your comments t o be 

t h r e a t e n i n g or i n t i m i d a t i n g ? 

A. No, s i r , I don't. I r e a l l y don't. And I — I'm 

offended by i t , but I ' l l — You know, I'm a b i g boy, I ' l l 

t ake i t . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I have no f u r t h e r questions 

of t h i s witness. This witness may be excused. 

I suspect t h a t concludes your p r e s e n t a t i o n , Mr. 

Kell a h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , I'm done. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: And we're done w i t h yours? 

MR. HALL: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: What other business do we 

need t o take care of now? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I would l i k e permission t o submit 
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a draft order that summarizes my case for you. I think 

that w i l l be the best use of my time. We've spent two days 

doing the case. I'm not sure there's anything I can t e l l 

you i n c l o s i n g t h a t you haven't already perceived i n the 

l a s t two days, and I would simply waive c l o s i n g and giv e us 

the o p p o r t u n i t y f o r a l l counsel t o put our thoughts i n 

w r i t i n g and l e t you t h i n k about what you would l i k e t o do. 

MR. CARROLL: Mr. K e l l a h i n , I asked Mr. Gallegos 

f o r a memoranda on the o b l i g a t i o n of one — of a p a r t y 

proposing a w e l l t o supply a l l a v a i l a b l e s e i s m i c / g e o l o g i c a l 

i n f o r m a t i o n t o the other i n t e r e s t owners i n t h a t w e l l . 

Could you also provide me a memorandum? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , I ' l l do t h a t . 

MR. CARROLL: I ' d l i k e t h a t , and I guess i n two 

weeks. 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t , s i r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. H a l l and Mr. Gallegos, 

would you also care t o submit d r a f t orders i n t h i s case? 

MR. GALLEGOS: Yes, Mr. Examiner, I agree i t 

probably doesn't b e n e f i t anybody t o go i n t o a lengthy 

c l o s i n g argument. 

I would j u s t l i k e t o renew both the motions t h a t 

we made a t the close of the Applicant's case, or the 

p a r t i a l close of t h e i r case, when we were informed t h e r e 

would be no g e o l o g i c a l testimony, and renew the motions 
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t h a t were made before the matter was heard, and we'd be 

happy t o submit a proposed form of order. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Should t h a t be also i n — What 

time schedule? Two weeks? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: No, I suspect — Well, Mr. 

K e l l a h i n , do you have a thought on th a t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , I can do i t w i t h i n 10 

days. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Let's say t h a t t h a t needs — 

t h a t should be i n by three weeks. 

MR. GALLEGOS: Three weeks. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: From today. 

And your motions, the motion f o r continuance and 

di s m i s s a l — 

MR. GALLEGOS: Dismissal and continuance. And 

di s m i s s a l also d u r i n g the case on the basis of the f a i l u r e 

t o prove. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I guess we would again r u l e 

t h a t — t o deny your motion t o continue the case and the 

motion the dismiss the case. The D i v i s i o n i s going t o be 

i n a p o s i t i o n t o determine whether t h e r e have been good-

f a i t h n e g o t i a t i o n s . We have the evidence, the testimony t o 

make t h a t determination, I t h i n k . I f we determine t h a t ' s 

not been the case they may, i n f a c t , be dismissed or 
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denied. So w i t h t h a t . . . 

MR. HALL: Mr. Catanach, f o r the record I would 

concur w i t h Mr. Gallegos's motions, the understanding of 

your r u l i n g ' s a p p l i c a b i l i t y . 

Also p o i n t out one other f l a w I see w i t h the 

A p p l i c a t i o n , i s t h a t based on Mr. Ha r r i s ' s comments the 

l a s t two days I have a b e t t e r understanding of h i s 

s i t u a t i o n . I t i s not u n l i k e T o t a l Minatome's where 

apparently there are some e x i s t i n g — p r e - e x i s t i n g land 

c o n t r a c t s i n place t h a t , I understand i t , Mr. K e l l a h i n ' s 

A p p l i c a t i o n , he's asking the D i v i s i o n t o r e w r i t e , t o 

r e d r a f t f o r him. 

The A p p l i c a t i o n submitted t o you i s , under 

Section 70-2-17C, po o l i n g s t a t u t e . I wonder whether 

anywhere i n th e r e , there i s r e a l l y the a u t h o r i t y f o r the 

D i v i s i o n t o issue such an order, changing the p r i v a t e 

agreements between p a r t i e s based on t h a t A p p l i c a t i o n . 

There may be under 70-2-17E, and I know i t ' s a question. 

At the very l e a s t , n o t i c e and advertisement i n 

t h i s case was under Subsection C only, where A p p l i c a n t 

comes before you asking t h a t leases w i t h 320-acre p o o l i n g 

p r o v i s i o n s , the matter of c o n t r a c t terms be mod i f i e d by 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e order. That's something e l s e , other than a 

p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n . 

And t h a t i s s i m i l a r t o To t a l ' s s i t u a t i o n . We 
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have pre-existing land agreements that, again, the 

A p p l i c a n t i s asking the D i v i s i o n t o r e w r i t e . I t ' s f a r 

beyond the province of 17C a p p l i c a t i o n . 

We would move t o dismiss on those a d d i t i o n a l 

grounds. 

MR. KELLAHIN: May I respond, j u s t very b r i e f l y ? 

Mr. H a l l i s re-arguing h i s Motion t o Dismiss he 

f i l e d on the 8 t h , and we've f i l e d our response, and you 

have t h a t response, and you have denied h i s Motion t o 

Dismiss on the grounds t h a t he j u s t a r t i c u l a t e d . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: We w i l l renew our d e n i a l of 

Mr. H a l l ' s motion a t t h i s time. 

MR. HALL: For the record, so there's an 

understanding, I also d i r e c t the D i v i s i o n ' s a t t e n t i o n t o 

the n o t i c e and advertisement of t h i s case. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: We'll take n o t i c e of t h a t . 

Anything else? 

There being nothing f u r t h e r i n these cases, we 

w i l l take Case 11,808 and 11,809 under advisement. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

11:52 a.m.) 

* * 
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